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PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

Km. 28 Mational Read, Tunasan, Muntinlupa City 1773 ph|l|plpln33
Tel. No.: {632) 350-7901 Fax Mo.: (632) 850-7928
Wabaite | www.papsiphilippines.com

NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS® MEETING
TO ALL STOCKHOLDERS:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Stockholders” Meeting of PEPSI-COLA
PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC. will be held on: ‘

Date 20 October 2010 (Wednesday)
Time : 2:00 p.m. '
Venue ; The Falms Country Club

' Alabang, Muntinlupa City

The agenda of the meeting will be as follows:

L. Call to Order

2. Certification of Notice and of Quorum |

3. . Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Annual Stockholders’ Mecting held on 21
October 2009

4. President’s Report for Fiscal Year ending 30 June 2010

5. Approval of Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year ending 30 June 2010

6. Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors and Management for the period 1 July 2009

to 30 June 2010
7. Election of Directors
8 Appointment of External Auditors
9. Adjournment

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on 24 September 2010 as the record date
for the determination of stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting.

For your convenience in registering your attendance, please bring any form of identification, such
as passport or driver’s license, as well as proof of your stockholdings.

9 September 2010, Makati City.

MA. ROSARIO C.Z. NAVA
Corporate Secretary
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-15
INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO bECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION COD

Check the appropriate box:
[ x 1 Preliminary Information Statement

[ ] Definitive Information Statemnent

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter:

PEPSLCDLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

Provinge, country or other jurisdict:ibn of incprporatim; or organization: Philippinesl
éBc lentification Number: 0000160968

BIR TaxIdEI:ltiﬁcation Code: 000-168-541 |

Address of principal office: ‘ | Postal Code:

Km. 29 National Road, Tunasab, Munﬁnlupa City 1773
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code:  (632) 850-7901 to 20

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders: 20 October 2010, 2:00 p-m., The
Palms Country Club, Alabang, Muntinlopa City -

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to secunty
holders: 29 September 2010

Securities registered pursuant to Sectmns 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the
RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is apphcable only to corporate
registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
' Outstanding or Amount of Debt
Outstanding
Common Shares of Stock 3,693,772,279




1.

Are any or all of.registré,nt'a securities listed-in a Stock Exchange?

Yes X No

I yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed therein:

Philippine Stock Exchange - Common Shares of Stock

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY
AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.



A. GENERAL INFO 10N

Ttem 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders. -

The Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Ing. (the “Corporation™) will
be held on Wednesday, 20 October 2010, 2:00 pra. at The Palms Country Club, Alabang,
Muntinlupa-City. : ‘ ‘

Notices of the meeting and copies of this Information Statement will be first sent or given to the
stockholders of record of the Corporation on or about 29 September 2010. Replies and queries must
be sent to the following address: : ‘ ' ‘

MR. PARTHA CHAKRABARTI
Corporate Information Officer
Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc.
Km. 29 National Road, Tunasan,
Muntinlupa City 1773 Philippines

Item 2. Dissenters’ Right of Appraisal

The matters to be acted upon at this Annual Stockholders’ Meeting are not matters with respect 10
which a dissenting stockholder may exercise his appraisal right under Section 81 of the Corporation
Code. ‘

Under Section 81 of the Corporation Code, the following are the instances when a stockholder may
exercise his appraisal right: : ‘

1. In case any amendment to the articles of incorporation has the effect of changing or
restricting the rights of any stockholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences
in any respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class, or of extending or
shortening the term of corporate existence; o ‘

2. In case of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledg'e or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the corporate property and assets of the Corporation; and

3. In case of merger or consolidation.

In order that a dissenting stockholder may exercise his appraisal right, such dissenting stockholder
must have voted against the proposed corporate action at the annual meeting. Within thirty (30) days
after the date of the annual meeting at which meeting such stockholder voted against the corporate
action, the dissenting stockholder shall make a written demand on the Corporation for the fair value
of his shares which shall be agreed upon by the dissenting stockholder and the Corporation. If the -
proposed corporate action is implemented, the Corporation shall pay the dissenting stockholder upon .
smrrendering the certificates of stock representing his shares, the fair value of said shares on the day
prior to the date on which the vote was taken. If the. dissenting stockholder and the Corporation
cannot agree on the fair value of the shares within sixty (60) days from the date of stockholders’
approval of the corporate action, then the determination of the fair value of the shares shall he made
by three (3) disinterested persons. one of whom shall be named by the dissenting stockholder, one by
the Corporation and the third to be named by the two (2) already chosen. The findings of the
majority of the appraisers shall be final and their award shall be paid by the Corporation within thirty



(30) days after such award is made. The procedure to be followed in exercising the appraisal right
shall be in accordance with Sections 81 to 86 of the Corporation Code.
Item 3. - Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

No director or officer of the Corporation bas atty substantiﬂ interest, direct or indirect, in any of the
matters to be acted upon in the Annual Stockholders” Meeting.

No director has informed the Corpofation of his opposition to anmy matter to be acted upon during the
Annua] Stockholders’ Meeting. ' -

B.  CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Ttem 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof -

The total number of shares of the Corporation outstanding and entitled to vote in the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting is 3,693,772,279 comimon shares..Thé record date for purposes of determining
the stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the Corperation’s Annual Stockholders” Meseting
is 24 September 2010. Each stockholder shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each common share of
stock held as of the record date. ' .

Holders of the common shares of stock of the Corporation are entitled to vote on all matters to be
voted upon by the stockholders. Stockholders entitled to vote are also entitled to cumulative voting
in the election of directors. Section 24 of the Corporation Code states: “...In stock corporations,
every stockholder entitled to vote shall have the right to vote in person or by proxy the number of
shares of stock standing, at the time fixed in the by-laws, in his own name on the stock books of the
corporation, or where the by-laws are silent, at the time of the election; and said stockholder may vote
such number of shares for as many persons as there are directors:to be elected or he may cumulate
said shares and give one candidate as many- votes as the number of directors to be elected multiplied
by the number of his shares shall equal, ot he may distribute them cn the same principle among as
many candidates as he shall see fit...” - ‘ S

Security Ownership of Record and Beneficial Owners of ot Least Five‘Percgnt (5%) of the
Corporation’s Securities as of 30 June 2010 : '

Name of
Title of  Name and Address of g;';i?‘:an]d : | Numberof |
élass Record Owner “ﬂd relationshi - Citizenship . Shares Percentage
Relationship with Issuer | . mp | ‘ Held :
. with record
» . gwner o
Common | PCD Nominee Corporation . | Pleaserefer | . .. . ‘ - . .
shares | (Now-Filipino)! | to footnote | VOB FﬂlPHfU ‘19574,1?.6”5-897 42:6303%

! PCD Nominee Corporation is the registered owner of shares beneficially owned by participants i the
Philippine Central Depasitory, Inc. (PCD), 2 private company organized to implement an automated book entry
system of handling securitics transactions in the Philippines. While PCD Nominee: Corporation is the registered
owner of the shares in the Corporation’s books, the beneficial ownership of such shares pertains to PCD
participants. (brokers) and/or their non-Filipino clients, whether individuals or corporations, in whose names
these shares are recarded in their respective books. Undet PCD procedures; when an issuer of a PCD-eligible

issue will hold a stockholders” meeting, PCD will execute a pro-forta proxy in favor of the participants for the
4



37% Floor, The Enterprise
Center ‘ '

Ayala Avenue, Makati City .
Relationship ~ please refer to
footnote

Quaker Global Investments
BV | Sameas . :

Zonnebaan 35, 3542 Eb indicated in Dutch 1,089,101,358 | 29.4848%
Utrecht The Netherlands | column 2 :
Relationship - Stockhiolder '

Common
shares

Hong Way Holdings, Tne.?
. 30™ Floor, Burgundy
Common | Corporate Tower

shares | 252 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue,
Makati City
Relationship - Stockholder

Same as ‘
indicated in | Singaporean 857,788,626 23.2226%
* golumm 2 ‘ . ‘

PCD Nominee Corporation
(Filipino)* -

37" Floor, The Enterprise Please rofer |
Center ‘ to footnote Filipino | 932,907.916 25.2562%
Ayala Avenue, Makati City '

Relationship — pleas e refer to
footnote ‘ ‘

Common
shares

Guoco Assets (Philippines),
Ine.’ '

30% Floor, Burgundy Same as :

Corporate Tower indicated in { Singaporean | . 255,594,962 6.9196%
252 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, column 2 '
Makati City

Relationship — Stockholder

Common
shares

tota] number of shares in their respective principal securities account, as well as for the total number of shares in
their client securitics account. For shares held in the principal securities account, the participant is appointed as

proxy with full 'voting rights and powers as registered owner of such shares. For shares held in the client

securities account, the participant is appointed as proxy with the obligation to constitute a sub-proxy in favor of
its clients with full voting and other rights for the number of shares beneficially owned by them.

2 Quaker Global Investments B.V. (“QGI™) is a corporation duly organized and existing wnder and by virtue of
the Jaws of the Netherlands with principal office at Zonnebaan 35, 3542 EB Utrecht, The Netherlands. QGI,
through its Board of Directors, has designated Mr. Sunil D’ Souza to vote its shares of stock in the Corporation.

5 Hong Way Holdings, Tnc. (“HWHI™) is a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the
laws of the Philippines with offices at the 30" Floor, Burgundy Corporate Tower, 232 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue,
Makati City. HWIII, through its Board of Ditectors, usually designates Mr. Micky Yong to vote its shares of
stock in the Corporation, : T

* Same as footnote 2 above except that the beneficial ownership of shares registered in the name of PCD
Nominee Corporation pertains to PCD participants (brokers) and/or their Filipino clients, whether individuals or
corporations, n whose names these shares are recorded in their fespective books. ‘

5 Guoco Assets (Philippines), Ine., (“GAPT) 1s a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of
the laws of the Philippines with offices at the 30™ Floor, Burgundy Corporate Tower, 252 Sen. Gil Puyat
Avenne, Makati City. GAPI, through its Board of Directots, usually designates Mr. Micky Yong to vote its
shares of stock in the Corporation. ‘ o




Security Ownership of Management as of 30 June 2010

: . Amount &
Tg:ggf Name and Address of men" g:;:;i::l Citizenship Peg:;l;: 9f
' Ownership
Micky Yong
Commog | Chairman of the Board, President and Diéﬂ;"f‘fﬁlhip ‘ -
shares ‘Chlef Executive Officer except for one | Singaporean [ 0.5414%
| ¢/o Km. 29 National Road, Tunasan, ‘ lifying share
Muntinlupa City qualitying shar
Sunil I)*Souza ‘
Common | Non-Executive Director ) .
chares | cfo 21* Floor, LKG Tower, =  Indian Nil
6801 Avala Avenue, Makati Clty
James Eng, Jr.
Commen | Non-Executive Director . .
shares | /o 50 Floor, The Center, 1 American Nil
99 Queen’s Road, Central, Hong Kong
Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang) .
| Common | Non-Executive Director T - .
shares | c/o 50" Floor, The Center, 1 B.rltish , Nil
99 Queen’s Road, Central, Hong Kong
Jobn L. Sigalos
Common Non- Eﬂi{ecutwe Director ‘ ' '
<hares c/o 20 | Floor Carcline Center ¥ | American N1l
28 Yur Ping Road, Causeway Bay,
| Hong Kong
Umran Beba
Comman Non-Eti{ecutive Dirt:"c:tor S
chares | ¢/o 20" Floor Caroline Center’ 1* Turkish Nit
28 Yun Ping Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong
Qasim Khan
Common Non—Eticecutive Dire‘ctor | . .
shires c/o 20 F!oor Caroline Center 1#* Pakistani . Nil
28 Yun Ping Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong ‘
“Jose M. Periquet, Jr.
Comon Non—Executive Direqtor N ; ,
sharés e/o 3™ Floor, Athenaeum Building, 1* Filipino Nil
| 160 L.P. Leviste Street, Salcedo Vlllage ‘ ‘
Makati City
‘Rafael M. Alupan Tl
Commof lndelfndent Director .
shé;res ¢/o 5* Floor, Benpres Bulldmg, 1* Filipino Nil
| Exchange Road corner Meralco Avenue, ‘
Qrtigas Center, Pasig City
Common | Oscar 5. Reyes ‘ e .
. shares | Independent Director ‘.1* Fihpm? Nit




c/o Uhit 2504 Corporate Center,
139 Valero Street, Salcedo Village,
Makati City '

Common
shares

Partha Chakrabarti .

Executive Vice-Prosident and

Chief Operating Officer for Finance,
Treasury, HR/EIRC/Legal,
Manufacturing and Logistics

¢/o Km. 29 National Road, Tunasan,
Muntinlupa City

Indian

- 0%

Commorn
shares

Felix 5. Yu ,

Executive Vice-President and

Chief Operating Officer for National
Sales Operations -

¢/o Km. 29 National Road, Tunasan,
Muntinlupa City

349,998
Direct ownership

Filipino

0.0095%

Common
Shares

Alkash Shah

Senjor Vice-President and

Chief Financial Officer

¢/o Km. 29 National Road, Tunasan,
Muntinlupa City ‘

Canadian

0%%

Common
shares

Roberto H. Goce

Senior Vice-President,

Corporate Setvices Group .
¢/0 Km. 29 National Road, Tunasarn,
Muntinlupa City

Filipino

0%

Commeon
shares

| and Logistics

Daniel D. Gregorio, Jr. |
Senior Vice-President, Manufacturing

¢/o Km. 29 National Road, Tunasan,
Muntinlupa City

70,000

\ Direct ownership

Filipino

0.0019%

Common
shares

L.

Ma. Rosario C.Z. Nava

Corporate Secretary and
Comﬁliance Officer

¢/o T Floor The Pearlbank Centre
146 Valero Street, Salcedo Village,

10,000
Direct ownership

Filipino

0.0003%

Makati City

* Each of the directors is the registered gwner of at least one qualifving share.

The aggregate shareholdings of directors. and ke
amounted to 20,430,008 shares which-is approxi

capital stock.

Changes in Control

The Corpo |
may result in’ a change in control of the Corpor:
ocentred since the beginning of its last fiscal year.

v officers -of the Corporation as of 30 June 2010
mately 0.5531% of the Corporation’s outstanding

ration is not aware of any voting trust agreement or any other similar agreement which
ation. No change in control of the Corporation has




Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Please refer to Note 14 to the Audited Financial Statements as of 30 June 2010 for. details on related
party transactions. ‘

Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers

Term of Office

Directors elected during the annual meeting of stockholders will hold office for one year until their
successors are duly ¢lected and qualified, except in case of death, resignation, disqualification or
removal from office. Directors who were elected to fill any vacancy hold office only for the
unexpired term of their predecessors. :

Directors

The [ollowing are the names, ages, citizenship and vears position was assumed of the incumbent
directors, including independent directors, of the Corporation: ' ‘ '

' ir 1 Year Position was
| Name Age Citlzens]llp Assumed

Micky Yong , 63 Singaporean | - 1997

| Sunil D'Souza 42 _ Indian 2009
James Eng, Jr. g 68 © Amerecan 20035
Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsan 60 __Bitish . 2005
John L. Sigalos ‘ 43 Amierican 2009
Umran Beba ' 45 ~ Turkish 2010
Qasim Khan 53 . Pakistani ‘ 2008
Jose M. Periguet, Jr. - 64 Filipino 2007
Rafagl M. Alunan ITT* 62 Filipino . 2007
QOscar 8. Reyes* ‘ ‘ 64 Filipino 2007

*dependent Director . ‘

Execative Officers

The following are the names, ages, citizenship, positions, and years position was assumed of the
incumbent officers of the Corporation: ‘

Year Position

Name ) Age | Citizenship Position | was Assumed
, ‘ . - Chairman, President and 2002
Micky Yong . . | 63 | Singaporean | ryi.epyecutive Officer
' Executive Vice-President’ 2010
‘ ' and Chief Operating Officer
Partha Chakrabarti 46 Indian for Finance, Treasury,
‘ HR/EIRC/Legal,
Ivanufacturing and Lopistics |
Executive Vice-President 2010
Felix 5. Yu 61 Filipino and Chief Operating Officer '
for National Sales




. Operations ‘ ‘ ,
Senior Vice-President and 2010
Chief Financial Officer ‘
Senior Vice-President, | 2006

" Corporate Services Group s
Senior Vice-President for | 1998

| Manufacturing and Logistics
Corporate Secretary and | 2007
Compliance Officer. ‘

| Akash Shah '36 | Canadian

'Raoberto H. Goce - 56 Filipino

Daniel D. Gregorio, Jr. 58 * Filipino

Ma. Rosario C.Z. Nava' | 41 | Filipino

Background Information and Businés.ﬁ Experience

Directors:

MICKY YONG

Mr. Yong has held the office of Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation since 2002, but he has
been a director of the Corporation since the Guoco Group Limited and its subsidiaries (“Guoco
Group™) acquired its interest in the Corporation in 1997. Since 1989, Mr. Yong has served as
President of Guoco Assets (Philippines), In¢., the Guoco Group’s principal mvestment vehicle in the
Philippines. Mr. Yong was the country manager and director of Dao Heng Bank Philippines and a
director of First Lepanto Taisho Insurance, Tutuban Properties Inc., (Guoco Securities Philippines and
several other corporations under the Guoco Group. Mr. Yong holds & Bachelor of Business
Administration degree from the University of Singapore. o |

SUNIL D'SOUZA,

Mr. D*Souza is Country Manager for the Philippines of PepsiCo. He has been with PepsiCo for the
past § years and held the position of Sales Director for the Philippines prior to his current
appointment. He holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree from the Pondichetry Engineering College,
~ Pondicherry (University of Madras) and a management degree from the Indian Institute of

Management in Calcutta.

JAMES ENG, JR.

Mr. Eng was an Executive Director of the Guoco Group Limited from 2001-2009. He was -

responsible for group staff support finetions for the Guoco Group. Before he joined the Guoco

Group in 1994, Mr. Eng previously worked with Hiram Walker, a division of Allied-Lyons. Postings
ineluded New York, Miami, London, Hong Kong and Windsor Canada. During his time with Brout,
Issacs & Co., Certified Public Accountants, in New York City, he was responsible for the
Management Services Division and was a Management Consultant in New York for Computer
Methods Corporation. He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from the University of

North Carolina. -

TSANG CHO TAI (ALLAN TSANG)

Mr. Tsang is the Chief Financial Officer of the CGaoco Group Limited. He is a fellow memnber of the
Hong Kong Tnstitute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, as well as an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England

9



and Wales. Mr. Tsang was an associate of an international firm of accountants before joiming the
Guoco Group in 1989. ' ‘ . : ‘

JOHN L. SIGALOS

Mr. Sigalos is currently PepsiCo’s Chief Financial Officer for the Asia-Pacific region. He has
occupied a variety of positions in PepsiCo for the past 12 years, including being Chief Financial
Officer of PepsiCo Thailand and Vice-President for Non-Carbonated Beverages in PepsiCo’s China
business unit. He holds an MBA. from the Wharton $School, University of Pennsylvania with dual
major in Finance and Strategic Management and a Bachelor of Arts degree in East Asian studies
(Cum laude) from Yale University. : | ‘

UMRAN BEBA

Ms. Beba is currently PepsiCo’s President for the Asia Pacific region. She started her journey with
PepsiCo in 1994 in the position of Cominercial Director of Frito Lay in Istanbul, Turkey. Since then,
she has occupied various senior management positions across South Eastern Europe. Ms. Beba holds
an MBA and Bachelor of Science in Industrial Engineering both from the Bogaziei University in
Istanbul, Turkey. - -

QasIM KHAN

Mir. Khan has been connected with PepsiCo for the last 21 years and has oceupied various executive
and managerial roles in different regional offices of PepsiCo. He is currently General Manager of
PepsiCo’s North Asia Pakistan Philippines Business Unit, Prior to joining PepsiCo, he worked for
Procter & Gamble. He holds an MBA and Marketing degrees (with honors) from Michigan State
University. ‘ ‘ ‘ '

JOSE M. PERIQUET, JR.

Mr. Periquet is the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Metropolitan Insurance Company,
Tnc., a position he has held since 1999 up to the present. He has been employed by Metropolitan
Insurance since 1985, when he joined as Acting President and Manager. He joined AIG in New York
in 1967 and was later assigned to ATU (Philippines), Inc. where he held the position of Senior Vice-
President and Director. M. Periquet is also a director of MIC Holdings, Inc., Bradstock Insurance
Brokers Inc. and the Athenaeum Condominium Corporation. Mr. Periquet holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Economics from Ateneo de Manila University and a Master's degree in Economics from Fordham -
University. .

RAFAEL M. ALUNAN X1

Mr. Alupan has had extensive experience in the private and public sectors. He is currently the
President of Lopez Group Foupdation Inc., a member of its Board and Boards of Lopez Group-related
foundations. He also sits on the Boards of Sun Life of Canada (Philippines), Inc., Sun Life
Financial Plans, Inc. and Sun Life Asset’ Management Company; and sits on various Board
committees. Mr. Alunan is also on the Boards of the Asian Institute of Management and the
University of St. La Salle. He is a regular columnist of Business World. Mr. Alunan obtained his
double degree in Business Administration and History-Political Science from the De La Salle
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. University, attended the Master’s in Business Administration-Senior Executive Prograi, of the
Ateneo de Manila University; and obtained a Master’s degree in Public Administration from Harvard
University, John F. Kennedy School of Government. ' ‘

O5CAR 5. REYES

Mr. Reyes was Country Chairman and President of Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation for mamy
years. He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Economics (cum laude) from Ateneo de Manila University and
participated in the Program for Management Development at the ‘Harvard Business School. He is
currently the Senior Executive Vice-President, Chief Operating Officer, and Director of the Manila
Electric Company. He also serves as a director and a member of board committees in the boards of
companies engaged in banking, insurance, telecommunications, water distribution, real estate,
shipping and mining. - ' ‘ '

Executive Officers:

PARTHA CHAKRABARTI

Mr. Chakrabarti has been employed by PepsiCo since 1994 and he remains a PepsiCo employee
while holding his current position in the Corporation under a formal secondment agreement. He is
currently the Corporation’s Executive Vice-President and Chief Operating Officer for Finance,
Treasury, HR/EIRC/Legal, Manufacturing and TLogistics. Mr. Chakrabarti began his carser with
PepsiCo India, where he held a number of positions before moving to Viemam as Chief Financial
Officer of PepsiCo’s business there. Before joining PepsiCo, he worked, for 1CI India. He holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Commetce from the University of Calcutta and is an Associate of The
Tnstitute of Chartered Accountants in India.

FELIX S. YU

M. Yu is the Corporation’s Executive Vice-President and Chief Operating Officer for National Sales .
Operations. He joined the predecessor of the Corporation in 1983 and has served in various roles in
sales and plant management. Prior to joining the Corporation, he worked for the CFC-URC Group of
Companies and before that, Nestle Philippines. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business
Administration from De La Salle University. - - '

AKASH SHAH

Mr. Shah is currently the Corporation’s Senior Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer under a
secondment agreement from PepsiCo of which he remains an employee. He has been with PepsiCo
sipce 2003 and has held various Finance positions in the Asia-Pacific region, including China,
Thailand, and across South East Asia. Prior to joining PepsiCo, he worked for A.T. Keamey, Inc. in
North' America. He holds an MBA from INSEAD and a Bachelor of Commierce degree from Queen's
University in Canada. . | ' '
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ROBERTO H. GOCE

Mr. Goee’s background is in sales and logistics. Prior to joining the Corporation in 1997, he worked
for San Miguel Corporation and before that, he held various positions in grains and fertilizer
industries. His experienco sncompasses business planning, management and organization audits, and
training and development. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Management from the
Ateneo de Manila University and is a founding member of the Distribution Management Association
of the Philippines. : IR

DANIEL D. GREGORIO, JR.

M. Gregorio began his career as a systems analyst for Coca-Cola Bottling Philippines, Inc. and rose
to the position of Chief Accountant. In 1987, he moved to Indonesia as Country General Manager for
Coca-Cola Amatil, the owner of the local Coca-Cola bottler. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree
in Industrial Engineering. ' : o ‘ '

Ma. ROSARIO C.Z.NAVA

Ms. Nava is a practicing lawyer and a member of the Integrated Bar of the Philippines since 1995. -
She has been a director and the Corporate Secretary of Solectron Philippines Inc. since 2005 and has
been the Corporate Secretary of CPAC Monier Philippines, Inc. since 2004 and is also currently a
Director thereof. She was also a Director of Hewlett-Packard Philippines Corp. from 2001 to 2002,
and re-glected in 2004 up to 2007, and was its Corporate Secretary. from 2006 to 2007. She holds a
. Bachelor of Science degree in Management, Major in:Legal Management (with. honors). from the
Ateneo de Manila University and a Juris Doctor degree from the Ateneo de Manila Law School.

No Dircetor has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors since the date
of the last Annval Stockholders’ Meeting due to disagreement with the Corporation on any matter
relating to the Corporation’s operations, policies or practices.

No single person is expected to-make a significant contribution to the business since the Corporation
considers the collective efforts of all its employees as instrumental to the overall success of the
Corporation’s business. The Corporation is not aware of any family relationship between or among
the aforementioned Directors or Executive Officers up to the fourth civil degree.

Except for the payment of annual directors” fee and per dicm allowances, the Corporation has not had
any transaetion during the last two (2) years in which any Difector or Executive Officer had a direct
or indirect interest.. ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘

None of the afore;mention@d‘Directors or Executive Officers is or has been involved in any criminal
ot bankruptcy proceeding, or is or has been subject to any judgment of a competent court barring or
otherwise limiting his involvement in any type of business, or has been found to have violated any
securities laws during the past five (5) years and up to the Jatest date. ‘
Nomination for Election as Members of the Board of Directors

The following have been nominated for re-election as members of ‘i:heBoa‘rd of Directors for the

ensuing year {2010-2011):
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Micky Yong

Sumnil ¥ Souza

James Eng, Jr.

Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang)

John L. Sigalos
Urnran Beba
Qasim Khan

. Jose M. Periquet, Jr. .
Rafael M. Alunan III (Independent Directlor)
Oscar $. Reyes (Independent Director)

All of the above nominees are incumbent Directors. Messrs. Micky Yong and James Eng. Jr. have
been formally nominated by Guoco Assets (Philippines), Inc. Messrs. Sunil D” Souza, John L.
Sigalos, Umran Beba and Qasim Khan have been formally nominated by Quaker Global Investments
B.V. Messrs. Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang) and Jose M. Periqust, Jr. have been formally nominated
by Hong Way Holdings, Inc. Guoco Assets (Philippines), Inc. and Hong Way Holdings, Inc. together
comprise the Guoco Group and with Quaker Global Investments B.V. are stockholders of the
Corporation. o -

The Corporation has complied with the guidelines on the nomination and election of independent
 directors set forth in Rule 38 of the Amended Implementing Rules and Regulations of the Securities
Regulation Code. The independent directors, Messrs. Rafael M. Alunan IIl and Oscar 8. Reyes have
been nominated by Veronica G. de Jesus and Roberto S. Franco, respectively, registered stockholders
of the Corporation who are not directors, officers or substantial stockholders of the Corporation and
who are not related to any of Mr. Alunan and Mr. Reyes. Attached are the updated Certificates of
Qualification for 2010 of the nominated independént directors Messrs. Alunan and Reyes.

Mr. Reyes is the incumbent Chairman of the Andit Committee of the Corporation. The incumbent
membets of the Audit Committee are as follows. Msssrs. John L. Sigalos, Tsang Cho Tai (Allan
Tsang), and Rafacl M. Alunan IIL. ' ' o

Mr. Alunan, on the other hand, is an incumbent member of the Nomination and Compensation and
Remuneration Committees of the Corporation. o ‘ S

The incumbent Chairman and members of the Nomination Committee are as‘f{)llaws: Messrs. Micky
Yong (Chairman), James Eng, Jr., John L. Sigalos and Rafael M. Alunan IIL

The incumbent Chairman and members of the Compensation and ‘Remunef‘ation Committee are as
follows: Messrs. James Eng Jr. (Chairman), Micky Yong, John L. Sigalos and Rafael M. Alupan I

. Tn 2007, the Corporation amended its By-Laws providing for the procedure for nominating members
of the Corporation’s Board of Directors. The By-Laws provide that the Nomination Committee shail
pre-screen and shortlist all candidates nominated to become a mémber of the Board of Directors in
accordance with the qualifications and disqualifications provided for in the: Articles of Incorporation,
By-Laws, thc Manual of Corporate Governance, applicable. laws, regulations and resolutions and
rules passed by it, the stockholders and the Board of Directors. Accordingly, on 15 September 2010,
the Nomination Committee approved the final list of candidates for the Board of Directors which
included all of the abovenamed individuals. o - '
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Item 6.

Thé aggregate compensation pz:ll,i‘d‘ in 2007,
Cotporation is set out below:

Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

2008, 2009 and 2010, to the Executive Officers of the

Position

Name Year Salary Bonus Others
Micky Yong - Chaitman, President and ‘ T '
Chief Executive Officer
Felix 5. Yu Executive Vice-President
and
Chief Operating Officer
for National Sales .
Operations
Partha Chakrabarti Executive Vice-President
and.
Chief Operating Officer
for Finance, Treasury,
HR/EIRC/Tegal,
Manufacturing and
Logistics
Alkash Shah Seniot Vice-President and -
Chief Financial Officer
Daniel D. Gregorio, Jr. Senior Vice-President,
' - ‘ Manufacturing and
Logistics
Roberio H. Goce Senior Vice-President,
".Corporate Services Group -
Aggregate for above- 2007 | B42,300,000 | 219,300,000
named officers 2008 | 43,708,000 | 22,066,000
2009 40,716,000 | 11,618,000
2010 | 43,739,000 | : 20,444,000
All other directors and . 2007 | - - ' -
officers as a group 2008. | - - R1,336,765%
unnamed 2009 - - 3,352,941%
2010 - -

2,535,000

*This relates to per diem alldw&ncas and anrmial directors’ Jee paid to the direcrors.

There are no special employment contracts between the Corporatinn' and the above Executive -

Officers.

Non-exceutive Dircctors are entitled to a per diem allowance of U8%1,000 for each attendance in the

Corporation’s Board meetings and committee meetings, except for Audit Conmittee meetings where
' the per diem allowance is US52,000. In addition, each Director is entitled to receive an anpual

directors’ fee in the amount of Five Hundred Thousand Pesos (B500,000.00). Seven (7) Directors
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representing the Guoco Group and Quaker Global Tnvestments B.V. have waived the per diem
allowance as well as the annual directors’ fee. o '

There are no outstanding warrants or options held by the above Executive Officers and all such
officers and Directors as a group.

Item 7. Independent Public Accountants

The auditing firm of ‘Manab'at Sapagustin & Co. is being recommended for election as external
auditor for the ensuing year (2010-2011). -

Representatives of said firm are expected to be present at the Anmual Stockholders” Meeting and will
have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do 50, and are expected to be available to
tespond to appropriate questions. ‘

Aggregate fees billed by the Corporation’s external auditor for professional services in relation to (i)
the audit of the Corporation’s annual financial statements and services . comnection with (a)
statutory and regulatory filings and (b). the initial public offering of the Corporation’s sharcs; and (if)
tax accounting, compliance, advice, planning and any other form of tax services are summarized as
follows: ‘

FY 2010 _ FY 2009 FY 2008
“Statutory audit fees | 23.68 Million | P 3.50 Million | #3.40 Million
TPOQ-related audit | - - - £15.70 Million
fees : : ‘
Tax advice fees ‘ - 20.33 Million £0.25 Million -
Total P 3.68 Million | P3.83 Million P19.35 Million

The Audit Committee of the Corporation reviews and approves the audit plan and scope of work for
the above services and ensures that the rates are competitive as compared to the fees charged by other
equally competent external auditors performing similar services. '

During the Corporation’s two most recent fiscal years or ary subsequent interim periods, there was.
1o instance where the Corporation’s public accountarits resigned or indicated that they decline to
stand for re-election or were dismissed nor was there any instance where the Corporation had any
disagreement with its public accountants on any accounting or financial disclosure issue.

In compliance with Rule 68 (3) (b) (iv) of the Securities Regulation Code, the Corporation bas
engaged Ms. Emerald Anne C. Bagnes, partner of KPMG Manabat Sanagustin & Co., to sign the
Corporation’s audited financial statements as of 30 June 2010. Ms. Bagnes has been signing the
audited financial statements of the Corporation since 2006. The Corporation became publicly listed
with the Philippine Stock Exchange only on 1 February 2008.

Item 8. Compensation Plans

There is no aclion or matter ¢ be taken up with respect to any plan pursuant to which cash or non-
cash compensation may be paid or disttibuted.
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C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

Itemn 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

There is no action or matter to be taken up with respect to the authorization or issuance of any
securities. : ‘

Ttem 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities

There is no action. or miatter to be taken up with respect to the modification of any class of securities
of the Cotporation, or the issuance or authorization for issuance of one class of securities of the
Corporation in exchange for outstanding securities of another ¢lass. - o ‘ ‘

Ttem 11. - Financial and Other Information

. The Corporation has incorporated by reference the following as contained in the Management Report

in accordance with Rule 68 of the Amended Rules and Regulations of the Securities Regulation
Code: ‘ ‘ - D '

1. Audited financial statements as of 30 Tune 2010 and 2009;
2. Management’s discussion and analysis or plan of operation; and
3. Information on business overview, properties, legal prdceedings, market price of

securities,.diﬁdgnds paid and corporate governance.,
Ttem 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters.
There is no action or matter to be taken up with respect 1o mergers, consolidations, acquisitions and
similar matters.
Item 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property
There is no action or matter to be taken up with respect to the acquisition or disposition of any
property. ‘ :
Tiem 14. Restatement of Accounts

There is no action ot matter to be taken up with respect to the restatement of any asset, capital, or
surplus account of the Corporation. - ‘
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D. OTHER MATTERS -

Item 13.

Action with Respect to Reports

The following reports/minutes of meeting will be submitted for approval by the stockhalders:

I.

Ttemn 16.

Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Mesting (ASM) held on 21 October 2009
which includes items on (i) Approval of the Minutes of the Previous ASM held on 28
October 2008: (i) President’s Report for Fiscal Year ending 30 June 2009; (iii)
Approval of Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Yeat ending 30 June 2009; (iv)
Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors and Management for the period 1 July
2008 to 30 June 2009; (v) Election ol Directots, including Independent Directors;
and (vi) Appointment of External Auditors; and

Audited Financial Statemsents for the Fiscal Year ending 30 June 2010.

Matters Not Required to be Submitted

" All actions or matiers to be taken up during the Annual Stockholders” Meeting will require the vote
of the security holders. : o

Ttem 17.

Amendment of Charter, By-Laws or Other Documents

There is no action ot matter to be taken up with respect to any amendment of the Corporation’s
Articles of Incorporation, By-Laws ot other documents. ‘ :

Ttem 18.

Item 19.

'Other Proposed Actions

Ratification of all acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Maﬁagement for
the period 1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010 which include resolutions on the election of

‘officers and Board committee members; placement of additional funds in a trust
account to supplement the existing retirement fund; and other resolutions issued in

the normal course of the business operations of the Corporation such as updating of
authorized signatories for various banks and other transactions and applications for
various credit facilities, among others; S

Election of the members of the Board of Directors, including the Independent
Directors, for the ensuing calendar year; and :

Appointment of External Auditors.

Voting Procedures

Moanner of voting

Tn all items for approval, except in the election of directors, ‘each share of stock entitles its registered
awner to one vote. : ‘
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For the purpose of electing directors, 2 stockholder may vote such number of his/her shayes for as
many persons as there are directors to be glected or he/she may curmulate said shares and give one
candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected multiplied by the number of his‘her
shares shall equal, or he/she may distribute them in the same principle among as many candidates as
he/she shall see fit. ‘

As required by the Corporation’s By-laws, voting will be done by ballot.
Voting requirements

(a) With respect to the election of directors, candidates who received the highest number of votes
shall be declared elected. ‘ ' :

(b) With respect to the adoption of the Audited Financial Statementé for the year ended 30 June
: 2010, as well as the approval or ratification of the other actions set forth under the heading
“Other Proposed Actions” above, the vote of a majority of the outstanding capital stock

. entitled to vote and represented in the meeting is required to approve such matters. -
Method of counting votes

The Corporate Secretary, assisted by her staff and the stock transfer-agent, will be responsible for
counting and tabulating the votes based on the number of shares entitled to vote owned by the
stockholders who are present or represented by proxies at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

UPON THE WRITTEN REQUEST OF A STOCKHOLDER, THE COMPANY
UNDERTAKES TO FURNISH SAID STOCKHOLDER A COPY OF SEC FORM 17-A FREE
OF CHARGE, EXCEPT FOR EXHIBITS ATTACHED THERETO WHICH SHALL BE
CHARGED AT COST. ANY WRITTEN REQUEST FOR A COPY OF SEC FORM 17-A
SHALL BE ADDRESSED AS FOLLOWS: . . .

PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC,
"Km. 29 National Road o
Tunasan, Mustinlupa City 1773 Philippines

: Attention; Mr. Partha Chaki*abarﬁ ‘



SIGNATURE PAGE |

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the Issuer has duly caused this report to

be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

9 September 2010

MICKY YONG
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Oﬂicer

PARTHA CHAKRABARTI .
Executive Vzce—Preszdent and Chief Operating Oﬁ'fcer
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ANNEX A
MANAGEMENT REPORT

1. GENERAL NATURE AND SCOPE OF THE BUSINESS
Ohverview

The Corporation was registered with the Philippine Securities and‘Exphange Commiséion on 8 March
1989 primarily to engage in manufacturing, sales and distribution of carbonated soft-drinks and non-
carbonated beverages to retail, wholesale, restaurants and bar trades. The registered office address

and principal place of business of the Corporation is Km. 29, National Road, Tunasan, Muntinlupa
City. | o o | :

The Corporation is a licensed bottler of PepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton beverages in the Philippines. It
manufactures a range of carbonated soft drinks and non-carbonated beverages that includes well-
known brands Pepsi-Cola, 7Up, Mountain Dew, Mirinda, Gatorade, Tropicana/Twister, Lipton, Sting
and Propel. ‘ .

Philippine Beverage Indusitj)

The beverage market in the Philippines is highly competitive. Competition is primarily through
advertising and marketing programs that create brand awareness, price and price promotions, new
product development, distribution and availability, packaging and customer goodwill.

Competitors in the carbonated soft drinks (CSD) market are The Coca-Cola Company, Asiawide:
Refreshments Corporation, and Asia Brewery Incorporated. The substantial investment in multiple
plants, distribution infrastructure and systems and the float of returnable glass bottles (R(GBs) and
plastic shells required to operate a nationwide beverage business using RGBs represent a significant
barrier to potential competitors in widening their reach. '

The market for non-carbonated beverages (NCB) is more fragmented. Major competitors in this
market are The Coca-Cola Compary, San Miguel Corporation, Universal Robina Corporation, Zesto
Corporation, among others, In recent years, the market bas been relatively fluid, with frequent
product launches and shifting consumer preferences. These trends are expected to continue.

Customers/Distribution Methods of the Products

The Cotporation has a broad customer base nationwide. Its customers include supermarkets,
convenience stores, bars, sari-sarl stores and carinderias.

The Corporation’s sales volumes depend on the reach of its distribution network. Tt increases the
reach of distribution system by adding routes and increasing penetration by adding outlets on existing
routes that currently do not stock its products. It relies on a number of chaniels to reach retail outlets,
including direct sales, distributors and wholesalers. - ) :

The backbone of the distribution system is what is r@ferred‘ to as “Entrepreneurial Distribution
System,” which consists of independent contractors who service one or more sales “routes,” usually
by truck, selling directly to retail outlets and collecting empty RGBs,

It also émploys its own sales force, which principally sells to what is referred to as the “modem trade™ -
channel, consisting largely of supermarkets and restaurant and convenience store chains. Most of



these sales are credit sales that are fulfilled by third party distributors. In addition, it sells products to
third party wholesalers and distributors, which sell them to retai'l outlets. -

An important aspect of the distribution system is the infrastructurc-intensive process of selling and
delivering RGB products to many thousands of small retailers, including sari-sari stores and
carinderias. The efforts to increase the reach of our distribution network require significant
investments in distribution infrastructure such as additional trucks, refrigeration equipment,
warehouse space and a larger “float” of glass bottles and plastic shells, as well as higher costs for
additional sales and distribution staff. : :

Principal Suppliers

Over half of total costs comprise purchases of raw materials. Largest purchases are of sugar and
beverage concentrates. The Corporation purchases all sugar requirements domestically because of
import restrictions imposed by the Philippine government. . It purchases beverage concentrates from
PepsiCo, Inc. and Pepsi Lipton International Limited at prices that are fixed as a percentage of the
wholesale prices charged for the finished products, subject to a floor price in U.5. dollars.

Another substantial cost is packaging. The major components of this expense are purchases of PET
pre-forms, which are converted into PET bottles at the plants, non-reusable glass bottles, aluminum
cans and closures. It also makes regular purchases of RGBs to maintain.float at appropriate levels.
Purchases of each of these materials are from suppliers based in the Philippines and in other parts of
" Asia, usually under short term, fixed price contracts. -

Legal Proceedings

From time to time, the Corporation becomes.a party to litigation in-the ordinaty course of its business.
The majority of the cases in which the Corporation is a party are cases it files to recover debts in
relation to unpaid receivables by its trade partners or in relation to cash or route shortages, private
criminal prosecutions. that it brings (generally for low value offenses such as theft of product or
distribution equipment, frand, and bouncing checks), labor cases for alleged illegal dismissal (which
are usnally accompanied by demands for reinstatement in the Corporation without less of seniority
rights, and payment of backwages), and consumer cases brought against it involving allegations of
defective products. : .

As a result of a promotion in 1992,' civil cases were filed against the Corporation in which thousands
of individuals claimed to hold numbered hottle crowns that entitled them to a cash prize. The
Philippine Supreme Court has consistently held in at least 7 final and executory decisions in the last 5
vears that the Corporation is not liable to pay the amounts claimed. In the most recent of these
decisions, the Supreme Court dismissed a similar claim, reiterating that it is bound by its
pronouncement in a number of cases involving this promotion. By virtue of the precedential effect of
the decided cases, the Corporation expects the remaining cases to be dismissed in due course.

The Corporation does not believe that the litigation in -which it is currently involved or which is
presently pending or threatened against it is material to it, either individually or in the aggregate. The
Corporation has not been involved in any bankruptcy, receivership or other similar proceedings:

. MARKET FOR ISSUER’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS ' ' , ' : .

Market Information

The common shares were listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE?’) on 1 February 2008,
The high and low sales prices of such shares for 2010 and 2009 are set out below. : ‘



‘ \ Period . High _ Low
| July to Sept 2008 P2.46 | B196
Qct to December 2008 BR20O0 - . P0.64
Jan to March 2009 - ‘ - BO99 - P04
April to June 2009 P1.50 . P0.90
July to Sept 2009 © - 246 - PR1.32
Oct to December 2009 . S BR250 B200
Jan to March 2010 - TR2.70 P202
| April to June 2010 . . B3.05 _B2.46

The closing share price as of September 1, 2010 was P2.77

Stockhblders

The Cc‘)rporation‘ has appmxiﬁlately 657 holders of common shares [with the PCD Nominee
Corporation (Filipino) and (Non-Filipine) congidered as two holders] as of 30 June 2010 based on the

number of accounts registered with the Corporation’s stock transfer agent, Stock Transfer Service Inc.
(“STSI”)- ]

The following are the Corporation’s top 20 holders of common shares based on the report furnished
by STSI as of 30 June 2010: : . ‘

Number of Percentage of
NO. | Name . Shares Held |  Ownership-
PCD NOMINEE CORP (NON- ‘ ‘ i
1 | FILIPINQ) - ‘ 1,574,666,897 42.63%
QUAKER.GLOBAL INVESTMENTS ' ‘ ‘ ]
2 |B.V. ‘ 1,089,101,358 29.48% |
| 3 | PCDNOMINEE CORP. (FILIPINO) 932,907,916 | . 25.26%
4 [ ORION LAND INC. .‘ 70,000,000 |  1.90%
5 | YONG MICKY 20,000,001 { 0.54%
6 | BORROMEOQ, JOSEPH MARTIN H. 450,000 0.01%
7 | M.J. SORIANO TRADING INC. 450,000 - 0.01%
8 | YAN.LUCIO W. R ‘ 300,000 0.01%
9 | MADARANG, WINEFREDA Q. © 250,000  0.01%
12 | LUGTI, VALERIANO A. ‘ 220,000 | - 0.01%
10 | DABAQ, LUIS G. 200,000 | - 0.01% | -
11 | BLANCAVER, RENE B. - 182,000 | . 0.00%
13 | YU,FELIXS. R , 149998 1 . - 0.00%
14 | MERCHAN BERNARDO 140,000 | © 0.00%
15 | SORIANQ, VICTOR MARTIN J. 130,000 | 0.00%
16 | IGNACIO, JUANITOR, 100,000 | 0.00% |
17 | NARCISO, MA CELESTES " 100,000 o (L00% |
18 | PINEDA, MA CORAZON V. 100,000 0.00%
19 | UMALLJOSEL . 100,000 | 0.00% -
[ 20 | PINEDA, YZRAEL EDWIN DE VERA 80000  0.00%

Cash Dividends

The Board of Directors (“Board™) approved severai daciarations c:f cash;dividends. amounting to B554
million in fiscal year 2010, R369 million in fiscal year 2009 and B400 million in fiscal year 2007.
There were no cash dividend declarations in fiscal year 2008. Details of the declarations are as
follows: o



‘ - Payable to
Dividend Per Stockholders of

Date of Declaration .~ . Share = Recordasof  Date of Payment
21 June 21 2007 o 2012 21 June 2007 - 20 August 2007
30 September 2008 0.10 15 October 2008 7 November 2008
30 -September 2009 - 015 - 15 October 2009 29 October 2009

Dividend Policy

The Corporation has a dividend policy to.declare dividends to stockholders of record, which are paid
from unrestricted retained earnings. Any future dividends -t pays will be at the discretion of the
Board after taking into account the earnings, cash flow, financial condition, capital and operating
progress, and other factors as the Board may consider relevant. Subject to the foregoing, the present
policy is to pay cash dividends up to 50% of its annual net income. This policy may be subject to
future revision. o S :

Cash dividends are subject to approval by the Board ‘wifhoup need for stockholders? approval. Stock
dividends require the further approval of the stockholders representing no less than 2/3 of the
Corporation’s outstanding capital stock. _ '

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities including Recent Issuance of Securities
Constituting an Exempt Transaction . S

There has been no recent sale of unregistered or exempt securities including recent issuance of
securities constituting an e}{:e:mpt transactiomn. . : ; , :

III. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Please refer to the Audited Financial Statements of the Corporation as of 30 June 2010, which is
attached hereto as Exhibit 1. ‘ . :

IV. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE T

There has been no change in the independent auditing firm or handling partner or disagreements with
the independent CPA on matters relating to the application and interpretation of accounting principles
or practices, tax laws and regulations, financial statement disclosures or audit scope and procedures
during the three (3) most recent fiscal years. : : ‘ ‘

V. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION
Results of Operations — for the fiscal 2010 versus 2069

The Corporation delivered a strong milestone year in terms of topline sales. It continued its focus on
driving the growing NCB market and maintaining it CSD share by continuing its strategic agends to
drive affordability and availability across the Philippines. Net sales increased by 13.3% from 2009
and have nearly doubled from five years ago, an impressive feat given the aggressive competition and
marketplace challenges. ‘ ' C o



The sales surge was led by NCBs posting an impressive 28% in revenue growth. With this
development, NCB share revenue mix grew from 26% to 29%, which is in line with the strategy to
fully embrace the health and wellness trend. CSDs also presented 2 strong 8% in revenue growth
surpassing the last 7 years growth in this market. The strong CSD sales were buoyed by the national
elections and the hot weather.

The impressive sales numbers however were tempered by rising sugar pmces, which increased by
22%. In 2009, sugar prices rose to a 35—year high as rain damaged crops in Brazil, the largest
producer, and dry weather curbed output in India, the second largest supplier. As supply. slowed and
demand continued to rise, the inventory reserves of many countries, including the Philippines, became
depleted resulting to higher sugar prices and significantly affecting sugar-dependent food and
beverage industries.. ‘

Despite this acute development, gross profit remained steady at P4.21 billion compared to last year’s
gross profit of P4.19 billion, while operating income slipped slightly to R996 million compared to Jast
* year’s figure of £1.1 billion. EBITDA likewise remained steady at B2.2 billion versus vear ago figure
of P2.2 billion, while EBIT slightly dropped to £1.04 billion versus year ago figure of ®1.2 billion,
weighed down by higher depreciation and amortization resulting from recent expansmn Programs.

Management was able to mitigate the rise in sugar prices in part by continuing to successﬁllly control
and reduce operaling expenses from 24% and 21% of sales in 2008 and 2009, respectively, to 20% in
2010, Notable reductions are in the area of selling and distribution expenses (from 13% of sales in
2009 to 12% in 2010) where Management’s rationalization and re—eugmeanng pmgrams have
managed to deliver superior service at much lower cost.

Marketing expenses as a percentage of sales were likewise lower (from 4% of sales in 2009 to 3%. of
sales in 2010). Focused marketing anchored on strategically targeted programs resulting in sales
increases amid modest marketing spending. General administrative expenses remained steady at 4%
of sales in 2010 and 2009, showing a firm-wide effort to manage the controllable variables in the
Corporation’s income statement. The Corporatlon s continued efforts to drive topline growth while

maintaining tight cost control will be the sustaining force in the years to come.
‘ . : !

Results of Operations - for the fiscal 2009 versus 2008

Fiscal year 2009 registered a healthy 5% growth in net income and 19% growth in operating incorme
over year ago level. It maintained profitability, with EBITDA margin of 16%, EBIT margin of 8%,
and Net Income margin of 6%. The oorrespﬂndmg numbers for fiscal year 2008 are 15%, 8% and 6%,
respectively.

Net sales growth of 9.6% is driven mainly by grpwth in NCB brands such as $ting, Tropicana and
Gatorade as well as CSD growth in flavors.

In line with its strategy of aggressively tappmg the healthy growth prospects for NCBs with health
and wellness as its platform and growing the business by targeting the broad CD mass market that still
constitutes the majority of the Philippine population, the Corporation continues to expand its offering
of beverage products to make NCB available to more Flhpmos at affordable prices and convenient
packaging. The Corpumtmn has since completed the e'xpansmn projects in Cebu, San Femando and
Toilo which made it possible to offer its NCB products in 8oz RGBs all over the country.

The Corporation launiched new product innovations such as Tropicana Summer Blends and Gatorade
Tiger and came out with high impact new packaging formats such as Pepsi Max black long neck 500
ml. PET, among other things, in order to create buzz and bring excitement to the consumers, as well



as use packaging to communicate and have a dialogué with consumers. It also launched the highly
successful Mountain Dew 750 ml RB to leverage the brand’s strong pull in trade. ‘

The intensified competition from a crowded CSD market along with the challenge posed by low- .
priced brands compelled the Corporation to drop its prices. ‘To counteract the adverse effect of low

price, commoditized cola segment on its profitability, the Corporation continues to maintain a healthy

revenue mix resulting to a 3% higher average LRB prices. o o

The weak economy, high inflation and stiff competition cansed undue pressure on revenues and costs,

Gross profit margin slightly dropped from 31.6% in 2008 to 29 4% in 2009 due to increased cost of
inputs such as sugar, CO2, packaging materials, fuel, and others during the 1% half of the fiscal year,

as well as depressed CSD pricing brought about by intense competition. In spite of lower gross profit-
margin and higher manufacturing depreciation, gross profit grew by 1.9% due to volume growth,

On the other hand, operating income grew by 18.8% and operating income margin registered an
improvement from 7.4% in 2008 to 8.0% in 2009 due to effective cost management. However, an
increase in effective 1ax rate from 24.0% in 2008 to 32,3% in 2009 caused the net income margin to
slightly drop from §.9% to 5.6%. - Lo

Operating expenses as a ratio to net sales decreased from 24.2%. to 21.4% mainly due to decrease in
marketing expenses by 21.7%. The decrease in marketing expenses as a percentage of net sales
dropped from 5.1% to 3.7% and is due to targeted and prudent marketing spending program initiated
by Management in 2009. ‘ o ‘

As a percentage of net sales, selling and distribution (S&D) expenses decreased from 14.1% to 13.4%.
In terms of absolute amount, S&D expenses increased by 4% as compated to year ago level. The
increase can be attributed mainly to volume growth, as well as the Corporation’s continued
investment in its distribution infrastructure such as RGBs, plastic cases and in-store refrigeration -
equipment. These increases in S&D cost were offset by the savings on personnel, rental and utilities
as a result of the rationalization of the number of its sales offices, as well as the effect of change in the

estimated useful life of its marketing equipment [rom 5 years to 7 years.
Financial Condition and Liquidity

For the fiscal year 2010, the Corporation had strong operating cash flows, i.¢., net cash pfqvided by
operating activities are substantially more than the net cash used in investing activities.

The Corporation’s operations are cash intensive. This capability to generate cash.is one of its greatest
strengths. With its liquidity, the Corporation has substantial financial flexibility in varying operating
policy in response to market demands, in meetiig capital expenditures through intemnally-generated
funds, and in providing the Corporation with a strong financial condition that gives it ready acoess to
financing alternatives (refer to Note 4 of the Audited Financial Statements for a detailed discussion on
the Corporation’s revolving credit facilities as of 30 June 2010). ' '

Credit sales over the past three years have changed from 62% of total sales in 2008 and 68% in 2009.
to 64% in 2010. This reflects a shift from a direct distribution mode to a more efficient model of
fostering partnership with distributors and multiroute  Entrepreneurial Distribution System
contractors, as well as increase in Modern Trade business. Liquidity has remained healthy. Collection
periods have improved from 30 days in 2008 and 27 days in 2009 to just 26 days in 2010. Inventory
days have decreased from 12 days in 2008 and 10 days in 2009 to just 8 days in 2010, reflecting a
more efficient inventory and production management. Trade payable days have remained at
manageable levels. : o

Tncrease in current assets from 22,293 million as of Tune 2009 'to 2,758 miltion as of Tune 2010 was
due to increase in cash and cash equivalents by B231 million, inventory by 2122 million, receivables
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by 887 million, and due to related parties by 249 million. The increase in cash is due to improved
working capital management while the increases in receivables and inventories were in line with
increase in sales volume. ‘ : '

Non-current assets decreased from 86,269 million as of June 2009 to 26,208 million as of Junc 2010
due to the decreased amount of bottles and cases (net of amortization) by 8116 million, as well as
decrease in other non-current assets by B35 million. These decreases were partially ofifset by the
increase in plant, property and equipment by 88 million, as well as by the increase in investments in
associates by B2 million. The increase in plant, property and equipment, on the other hand, is largely
due to the continued expansion of plant capacity.

Increase in current liabilities from £2,275 million as of Tune 2009 to 22,472 million as of June 2010 is
mainly due to increase in accounts payable and accrucd expenses by B344 million. The increase in
accounts payable and accrued expenses is partially offset by the decreased amounts from income ta:
payable by 298 million and notes payable by B50 million. . '

Non-current liabilities increased from 2577 million as of June 2009 to R599 million as of June 2010
due to the increase m deferred tax liabilities by 216 million and increase in other non-current
liabilities by 26 million. ‘ :

- Total assets increased from 28,562 million as of June 2009 to B8,966 million as of June 2010 mainly
due to the significant increase in current assets described above. Total liabilities itcreased from
£2,852 million as of June 2009 to B3 071 million as of June 2010 mainly due to similar factors stated
in increase in current liabilities. Total equity increased from 5,710 million to 25,894 million .ori
account of net income of B738 million for the vear less dividends of B554 million paid during the
year, ‘ o ;

Material Commitments for Capital Expenditures

Historically, the Corporation has sourced funding for capital expenditures essential to product
innovation initiatives and maintaining operational capabilities through internally-generated funds and
long-term borrowings. In recent years, it has met these requirements substantially out of operating
cash flow, and has incurred only short-term debt to assist with terporary liquidity requirements. In
January 2008, it had embarked on an [PO, with net proceeds of approximately 1.2 billion, to fund the
expansion of NCB business. As of June 2010, the IPO proceeds were fully utilized. The Corporation
has completed the expansion projects of Cebu, San Fernando and Iloilo. Capital expenditure for fiscal
year 2010 amounted to P1.127 billion.. : ‘

Factors that may Impact the Corﬁomtian 's Operations / Seasonality Aspects

Sales and profitability are affected by the overall performance of the Philippine éconumy, the natural
seasonality of sales, the competitive environment of the beverage market in the Philippines, as well as:
changes in cost structures, atnong other factors. ‘ ‘ '

Sales volumes are also affected by the weather, gonerally being higher in the hot, dry months from
March through June and lower during the wetter monsoon months of Faly through October. In
addition, the Philippines is exposed to risk of typhoons during the monsoon period. Typhoons usually’
result in substantially reduced sales in the affected area, and have, in the past, interrupted production:
at the plants in affected areas. While these factors lead to a natural seasonality in sales, unseasonable
weather could also significantly affect sales and profitability compared to previous comparable:
periods. Sales during the Christmas/New Year holiday period in late December tend to be higher as.
well. ‘ ‘

The CSD and NCB markets are both highly competitive. The actions of cémpetitcrs, as well as the
Corporation’s own continuous efforts on pricing, marketing, promotions, and new product.
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development, affect sales. Some of the smafler competitors have lower cost bases than the
Corporation and price their products lower than ours. Thus, in addition to the cost of producing and
distributing our beverages, sales pnces are greatly affected by the availability and price of competing
brands in the market.

All of the Corporation’s sales are denominated in Philippine pesos. However, some of the significant
costs, such as purchases of packaging materials are denominated in United States dollars. Some other
costs, which are incurred in Philippine pesos, can also be affected by fluctuations in the exchange rate
between the Philippine peso and United States dollar. As a result, movements in the exchange rate
between the Philippine peso and other currencies can have a 51gn1ficant effect on the results of

operations. ‘

The business reqmres a significant supply of raw materials and energy. The cost and supply of these
materials could be adversely affected by changes in the world market. prices on sugar, crude oil,
aluminum, tin, PET resins, among others. Althnugh direct purchases of fuel are relatively small as a
proportmn of total costs, the Carporation is exposed to fluctuations in the price of oil through ‘the
dependence on freight and delivery services. Changes in materials prices generally affect the
competitors as well. : : ‘

' Margins differ. between beverage products and package types and sizes. Excludmg packaging,
production costs are similar across the range of carbonated beverages, but vary between non-
carbonated beverages. Packaging costs vary, with RGBs being less expensive than PET, aluminum
cans or nom-returnable glass. The incremental cost of producing larger-sized serves in the same
package type is proportionately lower than the increased volume, creatmg opportunities to achieve
higher margins where customers percawe valye in terms of volume.

As a result of the factors discussed above, the margins the Corporatmn carns-on the products can be
substantially different, and the margins can change in both absolute and relative terms from period to
period. While the Corporatlon attempts. to adjust its- product and package mix to maximize
proﬁtabﬂlty, changes in consumer demand and the compeutwc landsoape can have a significant
impact on mix and therefore’ pmfitablllty :

The Corporation is also subject to credit risk, liquidity tisk and various ma:rkét risks, icluding risks
from changes in commodity prices, interest rates and currency exchange rates (refer to Notes 4 and 23
of the 2010 Audited Financial Statements for discussion on Financial Risk Management).

The Corporation is not aware of any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation
that is material to the Corporation, ihcluding any default or a‘cceleration of an obligation. :

To the Corporation’s knowladge, there are no material off- balance sheet. transacuons arrangements, -
obligations (including contingent obligations), and other TEIathﬂShlPS of the Corporatmn with
unconsolidated entities or other persons created durmg the repm'tmg period '

Significant Elements of Income or Loss that did not arise from Conﬂnmng Opemﬁms

There was no income or loss a.ri.s'ing from discontinued operations.

VL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporation’s Manual on Corporate Governance (“Manual”), which was adopted on 21 June
2007 and revised on 14 April 2010, details the standards by which it conducts sound corporate
govemance that is coherent and consistent with relevant laws and regulatﬂry rufes, and constantly
girives to create value: for its stockhiolders. - ‘



Compliance with the Ma;nual s ‘standards is rnomtored by the Corporatlon 5 Comphame Officer.
Ultimate responsibility rests with its Board of Directors, which also maintains three (3) standing
comrnittees apart from the Executive Comm1ttee each charged with oversight into spemﬁc areas of its
busmcss actlwtms

Executive Commitiee

The Executive Comumittee of the Board is responsible for developing and . monitoring - the
Corporation’s risk management policies. This Committee, which meets regularly, reviews the
detailed financial and operating. performance of the Corporzmon every month and reviews progress
against the relevant Annual Operating Plan and Operating Targets, monitors the Corporation’s
progress against key initiatives, pricing strategies and plans, sales and marketmg plans, capital
expendjture plagning Emd key dt:msmns on-organization structure and people ‘

Based on the Manual, the Executive Committee shall be cdmposed'of at least five members, namely, .
the President-Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Operating Dfﬁcer/s the Chief Fmanclal Officer, and
such other dlrectors

The incumbent Chmrman and members of the Executive Committee are as follows: Messrs. Micky
Yong (Chairman), Partha -Chakrabarti (Chief Operating Officer for Finance, Treasury, HR/EIRC/
Legal, Manufacturing and Logistics), Felix 8. Yu (Chief Operating Officer for National Sales
Operations), Akash Shah (CFO), Sunil D’Souza James Eng Ir., Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang) and
Qas;m Khan.

Audit Compnittee

The ‘Audit Committee assists the Board in its fiduciary responsibilities as it pI‘OVldeS an mdependeut
and objective assurance to the Management and shareholders of the Corporation that business
operations are carried out according to appmved standards-and objectives, aml the. Corporation’s
resources are preserved and producuve

Based on the Mannal, the Aundit Committee shall be composed of at lcast three directors, preferably
with accounting and finance/audit background. Two of the members must be 1ndapendem directors,
including the Chairman of the committee. The Audit Commlttee reports to the Board and is required
to meet at least once every three months.

The incumbent Chairman and members of the Audit Committee are as. follows: Messrs. Osear S.
Reyes (Chan‘man) John L. Sigalos, Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang), and Rafael M. Alunan III.

Campensatian and Remuneration Commitiee

The Compensation and Remuneration Committee, based on ohjective and impartial studies, utilizes a
formal and transparent framework in determining the remuneration of the members of the Board and
the Corporation’s key executivés.  This committee’s decisions on compensatlon issues are consistent
wﬂh the mqmrcmcnts of Db_]ec:tlwty, fairness and relevance \

Based on the Manual, the Compensation and. Remuneration Comnittee shall-be composed of at least
three members, mcludmg one independent director. The Compensation and Rmnuneratlon Committee
reports to the Board and is requu‘cd to meet at least once ea,ch year.

The incumbent Chairman and members of the Compen‘s.ation ‘and Rémuneration Committee are as
follows: Messrs, James Eng Jr. (Chairman), Micky Yong, John L. Sigalos and Rafael M. Alunan III.



Nomination Commiftee ‘

The Nomination Committee ensures that the Corporatmn 5 Board of Directors is- made up of
visionary, ethical and competent business leaders who can contribute to the vast range of ideas and
reach decisions that will protect and grow the business. This committee also makes sure that the
designated Board members address thie higher purposes of the Corporation as a responsible enterprise
which has a positive value on the communities where it operates.

Based on the Manual, the Nomination Committee shall be composed of at least threc members,

including one independent director. The Nomination Committee reports to the Board and is required
to meet at least once each year.

The incumbent Chaitman and members of the Nomination Committee arc as follows Messrs, Mlcky
Yong (Chairman), James Eng Jr., John L. Slgalos and Rafael M. Alunan III.

For purposes of evaluating compliance with the Manual, the Corporation has adopted the self-rating
form prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The Corporation has
complied with its Manual through the election of two (2) independent directors to the Corporation®s
Board; the constitution of the Audit, Compensation and Remuneration, and Nomination Committees
pursuant to its By-laws and the election of the Chairman and members of such committees, which
include the independent directors; the conduct of regular meetings of the Board of Directors and the
various committees of the Board abovestated; adherence to the written Code of Conduct prepared by
the Corporatmn s Human Resources Department and adherence to apphcable accountmg standards
and dlsclosure Tequireinents.

The Corporation adheres to a business plan, budget and marketing plan. Management prepares and
submits to the Executive Committee of the Board and to the Board, on a regular basis, financial and
operational reports which enable the Board and Management to assess the effectiveness and efficiency
of the Corporation,

While the Corporation has fulfilled its corporate governance bbhgauans and there has been no

deviation from the Manual as of date it continues to evaluate and review 1ts Manual to ensure that
best practices on corporate governance are being adopted.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc.
Km, 29, National Road

Tunasan, Muntinlupa City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc.,
which comprise the statements of financial position as at June 30, 2010 and 2009, and the
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash
flows for each of the three vears in the period ended June 30, 2010, and notes, comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordanee with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits it accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk assessments, the auditors constder
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial ‘
staternents in order to design andit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control,

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management as well as evaluatmg the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit oplnion.

Manabat  Saragustn & fc. CPRAs, p  Pripprs
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QOpinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc. as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2010, in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

MANABAT SANAGUSTIN & CO., CPAs

it o £

EMERALD AWNNE C, BAGNES

Partner

CPA License No. 0083761

SR Accreditation No. 03 12-AR-1

Tax Identification No. 102-082-332

BIiR Accreditation No, 08-001987-12-2010
lssued June 30, 2010; Valid until June 29, 2013

PTR No. 2092690MB
Issued January 7, 2010 at Makati City

September 9, 2010
Makati City, Metro Manila
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc.
km. 29, National Road

Tunasan, Muntinlupa City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of
Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc., as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, included in this
Form 17-A and have issued our repart thereon dated September 9. 2010.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Reconciliation of Retained Earniings Available for
Dividend Declaration is the respensibility of the Company’s management. This schedule is
presented for purposes of complying with the Securities and Exchange Commission
Memorandum Circular No. 11, Series of 2008, Guidelines on the Determination of Retained
FEarnings Available of Dividend Declaration, and is not part of the basic financial statements.
This schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly states in all material regpects, the financial
statements data required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken
as a whole.-
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Partner
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ﬁ Appendix 1

 PCPP|
PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC,

Km. 28 Matlonal Road, Tunagan, Muyntinlupa City 1773 Philippines
Tel. Ma.: (632 850-7901 Fax Na.: {632) 850-7928
Website: www.p=p=iphilippines.com

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC., is responsible for
all information and representations contained in the accompanying finencial statements,
which comprise the statements of financial position as at June 30, 2010 and 2009, and the
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2010. The financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
and reflect amounts that are based on the best estimates and informed judgment of
maragement with an appropriate consideration 10 maleriality.

In this regard, management maintains a system of accounting and reporting which provides
for the necessary internal controls to ensure that transactions are properly authorized and
recorded, assets are safeguarded against unauthorized use or disposition and liabilities are
recognized. The management likewise discloses to the Company’s audit committee and 1
its external auditor: (i) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
controls that could adversely affect its ability to record, process, and report financial data;
(1) matertal weaknesses in the mfzmal controls; and (i) any fraud that involves
rnanagement or other employees who exercise significant roles in internal controls.

The Board of Directors reviews the financial statements before such statements are
approved and submiitted to the Stockhelders of the Company.

Manabat Sanagustin & Co., CPAs, the independent auditors appointed by the Stockholders,
has audited the financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine
Standards on Auditing and has expressed its opinion on the faimess of presentation upon
completion of such audit, in 1ts report to the Board of Directors and Stockholders.
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MICKY YOXKG ) PARTHA CHAKRARARTI
Chairman, President and CEQ EVP and Chief Operating Officer
AKASH SHAH

SVP and Chicf Financial CGfficer




REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
MUNTINLUPA_CITY }8.5.

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me in the City of _ MUNTINI UPA €CITY this
___thday of SEP (1 9 701 by:

Competent
Name Eviderice of ldentity Date/Place Issued
Micky Yong. Passport No.E1376652C Sept. 1, 2008 / Singapore
Partha Chakrabarli Passport No. Z1751780 Feb. 26, 2008 / Manila

Akash Shah Passport No. BAG47570 Qct. 22, 2008 / Bangkok

who have satisfactorily proven their identity to me through the above identification, that they are
the same person who personally signed the foregoing instrument before me and acknowledged
that they executed the same.

ATTY. CELERING T. GRECIA Y

- Notary Pubhc
Doc. No. 464 . Untit December 31, 2611, NC 10-033
Page No. _ L~ Attorney's Roli No 31366
Book No. "\ 18P LRN 048845, u5-120-20 03, lloto
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e e g 4 A%



PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Amounts in Thousands)

June 30
Note 2010 2009
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 P643,613 P413,088
Receivables - net 6 1,075,420 087,963
Inventories 7, 1 825,467 703,963
Due from related parties 14 165,085 116,454
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 48,560 71,928
Total Current Assets | 2,758,145 2,293,398
Noncurrent Assets
Investments in associates : & ‘529,988 327723
Bottles and cases - net @10, 11 2,325,289 2,441,198
Property, plant and equipment - net 10,11 3,243,647 3,136,001
Othe: noncurrent assers - net 108,800 143.941
Total Noncurrent Assefs 6,207,724 6,268 863
P8,965,869 P8,562,261
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
“Accounts payable and accrued expenses 7, /2, [4, 24, 27 P2,412,870 P2,068,906
Income tax payable 38,540 156,456
Notes payable 7,9, 10 11 - 50,000
Tatal Current Liabilities 2,471,710 2,275,362
Noneurrent Liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities - net 13 391,887 375,723
Other noncurrent liabilities 24,27 207,790 201,304
Total Nonecurrent Liabilities 599677 577,027
Total Liabilities 3,071,387 2,852.389
Equity :
Capital stock 23 554,066 554,066
Additional paid-in capital 23 1,197,369 1,197,369
Retained earnings 24 4,143,047 3,958,437
Total Equity 5,894,482 5,709,872
P8,965,369 P8,562,26%

Sea Motes to the Financia! Sreremenrs,



PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
{Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Sharc Data)

Years Ended June 30

Note

2010 2009 2008
NET SALES i35, 22 P16,128,5845 P14,232.045 P12,980.886
COST OF ‘

GOODS SOLD 4, 16, 19,20, 24, 27 11,917,903 10,042 738 8.874,106
GROSS PROFIT 4,210,942 4,189,307 4,106,780
OPERATING EXPENSES
Selling and ‘

distribution 14,17, 19, 20, 24, 27 2,014 950 1,902,574 1,830,309
General and :

administrative 14, 18, 19,20, 24,27 708,092 620,850 648,080
Marketing expenses 4 301,774 520,916 664,935

| 3,214,816 3,044,340 3,143,324
INCOME FROM
OPERATIONS 996,126 1,144,967 063,456
FINANCE AND OTHER

INCOME (EXPENSE)

Tnterest income 5, 14 12,947 17,234 22,581
Equity in net earnings of

associates & 2,265 2221 20,028
Interest expense 11 (2,785) (21,972) (35,713)
Other income - net 45,913 38,979 30,567

‘58,342 36,462 37,463
INCOME BEFORE INCOME ‘

TAX 1,054,468 1,181,429 1,000,919
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13 315,792 381,739 240,222
NET INCOME/TOTAL

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME »738,676 P799,690 P760.697
Rasi¢/Diluted Earnings Per Share 2/ P§.20 P0.22 P0.22

Ze 4 A RN

See Notes to the Financial Statements.



PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(Amounts in Thousands)

Years Ended June 20
Nuote 2010 2009 . 2008
CAPITAL STOCK
Balance at beginning of year P354,066 P554,066 P496,948
_Issuance during the year 25 - - 57.118
Balance at end of year 554,066 554,066 554,065
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN
CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of year 1,197,369 1,197,369 59,473
Issuance during the year 23 - - 1,273,622
Transaction cost on initial public
offering ' 23 - - (137.726)
Balance at end of year 1,197,369 1,197,369 1,197,369
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of year 3,958,437 3,527,051 2,767,254
Net income for the year 738,676 799,650 760,697
Dividends declared 26 (554.066) (369,204) -
Balance at end of year 4,143,047 3,958,437 3,527,951
P5.894,482 P5,709,872 P5,279,386

See Notes to the Financial Statements.



PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts in Thousands)

Years Ended June 30

Note 2010 2009 2008
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax P1,054,468 P1,181,429 Pi,000,919
Adjustments for: : ‘ .
Depreciation and amortization 19 1,147,314 1,025,824 969,611
Retirement cost 24 33,460 34,7 67,708
Allowance for probable losses '
in values of bottles and cases,
machinery and equipment,
impairment losses, inventory
obsolescence and ‘
others provisions - net 78 18,602 112,615 21,920
Interest expense 2,785 21,972 35,7113
Interest income (12,947) (17,2534) (22,581)
Equity in net earnings of
associates 8 . (2,26%) (2,221) {20,028)
Gain on disposal of property
and equipment (1,650) (1,841) (1,527)
Operating income before
working capital changes 2.269.767 2.355,335 2,051,735
Changes in operating assets and
liabilities:
Decrease (increase} in:
Receivables '] (71,524) (159,923) (82,985)
Inventorics 7 (127,192) (48,959) (84,718)
Due from related parties (48,631) 104,075 (130,015)
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets 23,368 41,324 (52,207)
Increase (decrease) in accounts
payable and accrued expenses 12 156,356 (8.414) (138,593)
Cash generated from operations 2,202,144 2,283,438 1,563,217
Interest received 12,671 18,061 22,035
Income taxes paid (240,174) (139,272) (181,196)
Contribution to plan assets 24 (56,000) (48,000) (54.000)
Interest paid - (2,783) (22,490) (39,957)
Net cash provided by operating
activities 1,915,856 2,091,737 1,310,099

Forward



Years Ended June 30

Note 2010 2009 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of

property and equipment 10 P10,454 P5,370 P17,681
Decrease (increase) i other

nongurrent assets 35,141 (5,902) 812
Additions to:

Property, plant and equipment It (679,743) (833,864) (1,309,518}
" Boitles and cases 0 (447,117) (968,275) (671,301)
Net cash used in investing activitics (1,081,265) {1,802,671) (1,962.226)
CASH FLOWS FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash dividends paid 26 (554,066) (369,204) (400,000)
Proceeds from (repayments of):

Notes payable il {50,000} (97,100) 98,500

Long-term debt - - (283.333)
Proceeds from issuance of shares of

stocks - - 1,195,014
Net cash provided by (used in}

financing activities (604,066) (466,304) 610,181
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN

CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 230,523 (177,238) (41,946)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 413,088 590,326 632,272
CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS AT END OF

YEAR : 3 P643,613 P413,088 P590,326

See Noles 16 the Financial Stalemsnts.
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Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS includes statements named
PFRS and Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), including Philippine Interpretations
from International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commitiee (IFRIC), issued by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council.

The financial statements of the Company which comprise statements of financial position
as at June 30, 2010 and 2009, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of
changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended June 30, 2010 were approved and authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of
Directors (BOD) on September 9, 2010.

Certain accounts in the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2009 and statements
of cash flows for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 have been reclassified 10
conform to the 2010 presentation.

Basis of Measurement ‘
The financial statements have been prepared on & historical cost basis.

Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented in
Philippine peso, which is also the Company’s functionzl currency and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousands, except per share data and when otherwise indicated.

Use of Cstimates and Judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires
management to make estimates and judgments that affect the application of accounting
policies and the amounts reported in the financial statements. The estimates and
judgments used in the accompanying finaneial statements are based on management’s
evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the Company’s financial

statemnents. Actual results wiay differ from these =stimates, -
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allowance for impairment losses on receivables amounted to P08 million and P130
million, respectively. Receivables, net of allowance for impairment losses, amounted to
P1.075 hiliion and P88 million as of June 20, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see Note 6).
No allowanee for impairment losses 15 necessary for the Company's due from related
parties as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, ‘ o :



Estimating Net Realizable Value of Inventories

In determining the net realizable value of inventories, the Company considers inventory
obsolescence based on specific identification and as determined by management for
inventories estimated to be unsaleahble in the future. The Company reduces the cost of
inventories 1o a realizable value at a level considered adequate to reflect market decline
in value of the recorded inventory. The Company reviews, on a continuous basis, the
product movement, changes in consumer demands and introduction of new products Lo
identify inventories which are to be written down to net tealizable values. The net
realizable value of inventories amounted to P8235 million and P704 mullion as of June 30,
2010 and 2009, respectively (see Note 7).

Estimating Useful Lives gf the Excess of Cost of Containers over Deposit Values

The excess of the acquisition costs of the returnable bottles and cases over their deposit
values is deferred and amortized over their estimated useful lives (EUL) principaliy
determined by their historical breakage and wippage. A reduction in the EUL of excess of
cost over deposit value would increase the recorded amortization and decrease
noncurrent assets. As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, accumulated amortization of excess of
cost over deposit values of returnable bottles and cases amounted to P3.735 billion and
P3.172 billion, respectively. The carrying amounts of bottles and cases amounted to

P2.325 billion and P2.441 billion as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively
(see Note 9). -

Estimating Allowance for Unusable Containers

An allowance for unusable containers is maintained based on specific identification and
as determined by management to cover bottles and shells that are no onger considered fit
for use in the business, obsolete or in excess of the Company’s needs. As of
June 30, 2010 and 2009, allowance for unusable containers amounted ta P13 million and
P17 mitlion, respectively (see Note 9).

Estimating Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company reviews annually the EUL of property, plant and equipment based on the
period over which the assets are expected to be available for use and updates those
expectations if actual results differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear
and technical or commercial obsolescence, It is possible that future financial performance
could be materially affected by changes in these estimates brought about by changes in
the factors mentioned. A reduction in the EUIL of property, plant and equipment would
increase the recorded depreciation and amortization expenses and decrease noncurrent
assets,

The EUL are as follows:

Number of Years

Buildings and leasehold improvements 20 or term of the lease,

whichever is shorter
Machinery and other equipment 3-10
Furniture and fixtures ‘ 10

As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
amounted to P3.244 billion and P3.156 billion, respectively (see Note 10).
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Estimating Allowance for Impairinent Losses on Nonfinancial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an item
of bottles and cases, property, plant and equipment, investments in assoctates and other
noncurrent assets may be impaired. Detenmining the value of the assets, which requires
the determination of future cash flows expecied to be generated from the continued use
and ultimate disposition of such assets, requires the Company to make estimates and
assumptions that can materially affect the financial statements, Future events could cause
the Company to conclude that these assets are impaired. Any resulting impairment loss
could have material impact on the financial position and financial performance of the
Company.

‘The preparation of the estimaled future cash flows invelves judgment and estimations.
While the Company believes that its assumptions are appropriate and reasonable,
significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect the Company’s
assessment of the tecoverable amounts and may lead to future additional impairment
charges. As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, none of these impairment indicators exist on the
Company’s boftles and cases, property, plant and equipment, investments in associaies
and other noncurrent assets. As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, the carrying amounts of
bottles and cases amounted to P2.325 billion and P2.441 billion, respectively
{see Note 9). As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, the carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment amounted to P3.244 billion and P3.156 billion, respectively (see Note 10).
Investments in associates amountad to P330 million and P528 million as of June 30, 2010
and 2009, respectively (see Note 8).

Estimating Realizability of Deferred Tax Assels

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each reporting date
and reduces deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.
The Company’s assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets is based on the
forecasted taxable income of the subsequent reporting periods. This forecast is based on
the Company’s past results and future expectations on revenues and expenses. The
Company has no untecognized deferred tax assets as of June 30, 2010 and 2009. As of
June 30, 2010 and 2009, the Company has net deferred tax liabilities amounting to P393
million and P376 million, respectively (see Note 13).

Estimating Retirement Benefits Liability

The determination of the retirement benefits liability and retirement benefits cost i3
dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by the actuary in calculating such
amounts. Those assumptions include, amang others, discount rates, expected returns on

plan assets and salary increase rate. Actual resulte that differ from the Company’s

assumptions, subjact to the 10% corridor test, are accumulated and amortized over future
periods and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligations
in such future periods. As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, the Comparny has unrecognized net
actuarial gains amounting 1o PO.5 mullion and P7 million, respectively (see Note 24).



3.

Significant Accounting Policies

The following explains the significant accounting policies which have been adopted in
the preparation of the financial statements:

Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial years
except for the following new standard, revised standard, improvements to standards,
amendments to standards and interpretation, which have been applied in preparing these
financial statements:

« PFRS 8, Operating Segments, replaces PAS 14, Segment Reporiing. This PFRS
adopts a management approach in reporting segment information. The information
reported would be that which management uses internally for evaluating the
performance of operating segments and allocating resources to those segments. It is
required for adoption only by entities whose debt or equity instruments are publicly
traded, or are in the process of filing with the SEC for the purposcs of 1ssuing any
class of instruments in a public market. The requirements of this new standard have
been included in the preparation of the Comparny’s financial statements.

s Revised PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Stmements (2007), introduces the term
total comprehensive income, which represents changes in equity during a period
other than those changes resulting from transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners, Total comprehensive income may be presented in either a single statement of
comprehensive income (effectively combining both the income statement and all
non-owner changes in equity in a single statement), or in an income statement and a
statement of comprehensive income. The adoption of this revised PAS 1 resulted in
the following: (a) change in the title from balance sheets to statements of financial
position; and (b) change in the presentation of changes in equity and of
comprehensive income - non-owner changes in equity are now presented in one
statement of comprehensive income. In addition, comparative information has been
re-presented in conformity with the revised standard.

= Revised PAS 23, Borrowing Costs, removes the option to expense borrowing costs
and requires an entity to capitalize borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset as part of the cost of that
asset. The adoption of this revised standard did not have any significant impact on
the Company’s financial statemenis.

«  [mprovements lo FFRSs 2008 discuss 35 amendments and are divided into two parts:
a) Part I includes 24 amendments that result in accounting changes for presentation,
recognition or measurement pPurposes; and b) Part II includes 11 terminology or
editorial amendments that the International Accouniing Standards Board (IASE)
expects to have either no or only minimal effects on accounting, The adoption of
these improvements did not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial
statermnents.

«  Amendments to PFRS 7, Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments,
enhance disclosures over fair value measurements telating to financial instruments,
specifically in relation to disclosures over the inputs used in valuations technigues
and the uncertainty associated with such valuations. The amendments also imprave
disclosures over liguidity risk ro address currzn. diversity in practice on how such
disclosure requirements are betug interpreted and applied, proposing quantitative
disclosures based on how liquidity risk is managed and strengthening the relationship.
herwesn guantitative and qualitative liquidity nisk disciosures. As allowed by the
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amendments, in the first vear of application, the Company does not need to provide
comparative information. Additicnal disclosures required in the amendments to
PFRS 7 are shown in'Note 23 to the financial statements.

*  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 17, Distributions of Noncash Assets (o Owners,
provides guidance on the accounting for non-reciprocal distributions of non-cash
agsets to owners acting in their capacity as owners. It also applies to distributions in
which the owhers may eleot to receive either the non-cash asset or a vash alternative.
The Hability for the dividend payable is measured at the fair value of the assets to be
distributed. The adoption of this interpretation did not have any significant impact on
the Company’s financial statements.

New Standard, Revised Standard. Amendments to Standards. Improvements to Standards
and Interpretation Not Yet Adopted

The Company has not applied the following new standard, revised standard, amendments

to standards, improvements to standards and interpretation which have been approved but

are not yet effective as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010:

»  Improvements to PFRSs 2007 contain 15 amendments to 12 standards. In particular
the amendments to PAS 17, Leases, may affect the classification of leases of land
and buildings, pariicularly in jurisdictions in which such leases often are for a long
period of time. The amendments are generally effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2010, These improvements and amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements upon its
adoption on July 1, 2010. ‘

«  Amendment to PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Classification af
Rights Issues, which will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after
February 1, 2010. The amendment permits rights, options or warrants to acquire a
fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments for a fixed amount of any
currency 1o be classified as equity instruments provided the entity offers the rights,
options or warrants pro rata all of its existing owners of the same class of its own
non-derivative equity instruments. The amendment is not expected to have any
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements upon its adoption om
July 1, 2010

« Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-19, Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equiry
Instruments, which will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after
July 1, 2010. The interpretation addresses issues in respect of the accounting by the
debtor in a debt for equity swap transaction. It clarifies that equity instruments
:csued to a creditor to extinguish all or part of a financial liability in 2 debt for equity
swap are consideration paid in accordance with PAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, paragraph 41. This interpretation is not expected 10
have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements upon its adoption
on July 1, 2010,

« Revised PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures {2009), which will be effective for
annuzl periods beginning on or afier January I, 2011. The revised standard amends
the definition of a related party and modifies certain related party disclosure
requirements for government-related entities. The revised standard is not expected 10
have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements upon its adoption
on July 1, 2011, .
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= PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which will be effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2013, This standard was issued as part of a wider project to
replace PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. PFRS 9
retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes two primary
measurement categories for financial assets: amortized cost and fair value. The
basis of classification depends on the entity’s business model and contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial asset. The guidance in PAS 39 on impairment of
financial assets and hedge accounting continues to apply. The new standard is not
expected 10 have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements upon
its adoption on July 1, 2013.

Financial Instruments

Date of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in
the statements of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets and
liabilities on initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at each reporting date. In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of
financial assets, recognition and derecognition, as applicable, is done using settlement
date accounting. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets require delivery of
assets within the time frame generally established by regulations in the market place.

Initial Recognition of Financial Instrumenis. Financial instruments are recognized
initially at fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration given or received. The
fair value of the consideration given or received is determined by reference to the
transaction price or other market prices. If such market prices are not reliably
determinable, the fair valuc of the consideration is estimated as the sum of all future cash
payments or receipts, discounted using the prevailing market rate of interest for similar
instruments with similar maturities. The initial measurement of financial instruments,
except for those designated at fair value through profit and loss (FVPL), includes

‘transaction cost.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, available-for-sale {AFS)
financial assets, FVPL financial assets, and loans and receivables. Financial liabilitics are
classified as financial Habilitics at FVPL or other financial liabilities, The classification
depends on the purpose for which the investments are acquired and whether they are
quoted in an active market. As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, the Company has no financial
assets and financial liabilities at FVPL, HTM investments and AFS financial assets.

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are not
entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not designated
as AFS finencial assets or TVPL financial assets. Loans and receivables are carried at
amortized cost, less impairment in value. Amortization is determined using the effective
interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in income when the loans and
receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through amortization process.

The Company’s receivables and due from related parties are included in this category.

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
vestments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original
maturities of thyee months or less from dates of acquisition and that are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.



Financial Liabilities. Thiz category pertains to financial liabilities that are not held for
{rading or not designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the liability. These include
liabilities arising from operations or borrowings.

The financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently carried
at amortized cost, taking into account the impact of applying the effective interest method
of amortization {or accretion) for any related premium, discount and any directly
attributable transaction costs.

Included in this category are the Company’s notes payable and accounts payable and
accrued expenses that meet the above definition (other than liabilities covered by other
PFRS, such as income tax payable and accrued retirement cost).

Derecognition of Financial Instrrments. A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of
a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

= the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired;

m  the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset, but has
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; or

= the Company has transferred its rights 1o receive cash flows from the financial asset
and either: (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial
asset; or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the financial asset, but has transferred control of the financial asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from a financial asset
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
Financial asset nor transferred control of the financial asset, the financial asset is
recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the financial asset.
Continving involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transfer of the
financial asset {s measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the financial
seset and the maximum amdunt of consideration that the Company could be required to

repay.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such modification is treated as a derecognition of the carrying
value of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability au fair value, and any
resulting difference is recognized in profit or loss.

Day 1 Profir. When the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair
value of other observable current market transactions of the same instrument or based on
a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the
Company recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day
1 profit”) in profit or loss. In cases when use is made of data which are not observable,
the difference between thé transaction price and model value is only recognized in profit
or loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For
each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of recogrizing the
‘Day 1’ profit amount.

Offsetting Financial [astruments Financial as==ts and liabilities uie offset and the net
amount presented in the statements of finandial position when, and only when, the
Company has a lagal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis
or to realize the asset and settle the lability simultanzoushy.

o8-



Capital Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital

Capital stock and additional paid-in capital are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net
of any tax effect, o

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable valye. The cost of
inventories includes expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and
condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in process, cost includes an
approptiate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity. Net
reahzable value of inventories, other than spare parts and supplies, is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
selling expenses, For the spare parts and supplies, net realizable value is the estimated
selling price less costs to sell.

Investments in Associates ‘

Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence, but not
control, over the financial and operating policies and which are neither subsidiaries nor
Joint ventures; The financial statements include the Company’s share of the total
recognized earnings and losses of associates on an equity accounted basis, from the date
that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases. The .
application of the equity 1nethod of accounting is based on the Company*s beneficial
interest in the net profits and net assets. Distributions received from the associates
reduce the carrying amount of the investments. Income and expense resulting from
transactions between the Company and the associates are eliminated to the extent of the
interest in the associates. When the Company’s share of losses exceeds the cost of the
investment in an associate, the camrying amount of that interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Company has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Company’s investment includes goodwill that represents the excess of acquisition
cost of investment over the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the investee
companics at the date of acquisition, net of impairment in value, if any.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company’s financial statements. ‘

Bottles and Cases

Bottles and cases include retumable glass bottles and cases stated at deposit valuss and
the excess of the acquisition costs of returnable bottles and cases over their deposit
values. It also includes certain pallets acquired under finance lease. These assets are
deferred and amortized vsing the straight-line method over their EUL (5 years for
returriable bottles and 7 years for cases and pallets) determined principally by their actual
historical breakage and trippage. An allowance is provided for excess, unusable and
obsolete returnable bottles and cases based on the specific identification method.

Property. Plagt and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost (which comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs in bringing the asset to working condition and loeation for
its intended use) less accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment losses, if
any,



Subsequent costs that can be measured reliably are added to the carrying amount of the
asset when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow
1o the Company. The cost of day-to-day servicing of an asset is recognized as expense in
the period in which it is incurred. ‘

Construction in progress represents plant and equipment under construction and is stated
at cost. This includes cost of construction and other direct costs. ConsIruction in progress
is not depreciated until such time that the relevant assets are completed and put into
operational use.

Depreciation commences once the assets become available for use. Depreciation is
computed on a straight-line basis over the EUL of the assets. Leascheld improvements
are amortized over the EUL of the improvements or the term of the lease, whichever is
shorter,

The EUL and depreciation and amortization methods are reviewed at each reporting date
1o ensure that the period and depreciation and amortization methods are consistent with
the expected pattern of economic benefits from those assets.

When an asset is disposed of, or is permanently withdrawn from use and ac future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal, the cost and accumulated depreciation,
“amortization and impairment losses, if any, are removed from the accounts and any
resulting gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal is recognized m profit or
loss. ‘

Impairment

Finoneial Assels

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired 1f
objective evidence indicates that one or more evems have had a negative cffect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is
calculated as the difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Individually, significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis.
The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit
risk characteristics. All impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

Reversal of an impairment loss previously recognized is recorded when the decrease can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment event. Such reversal 1s
~ recognized in profit or loss. However, the increased carrying amount is only recognized
to the extent it does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the
impairment loss not been recognized.

Nonfinancial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s nonfinancial assets such as investments in
associates, bottles and ceses, and property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, the assel’s recoverable amount is estimated. ‘

An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss whenever the carrying amount of an
asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. :



The recoverable amount of a nonfinancial asset is the greater of the asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use. The fair value less costs to seli is the amount obtainable
from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length transaction. Value in use 13 the present value
of the future cash flows expected to be delivered from an asset or cash-generating unit. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their presemt
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash
flows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairtnent loss is reversed only to the extent that
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized. Reversals of impairment are recognized in profit or loss.

Revenue Recoanition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the tevenue can be measured reliably. Revenue from the sale of
goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
returns and discounts. Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probabie,
the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, and there is
no continuing involvement with the goods. Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
coincide with the delivery of the products fo the customers.

Cost and Expense Recogmition
Costs and expenses are recognized in profit or loss as they are incurred.

Advertising and Marketing Costs
Advertising and marketing costs are charged to operations in the year such costs are

incurred.

Finance Income and Expenses :
Finance income comprises of interest income on bank deposits and money market

placements, dividend income and foreign currency gains, [nterest income is recognized in
profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is
recognized on the date that the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings and foreign currency losses.
All finance expenses are recognized in profit or loss as they accrue.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership is transferred
to the Company are classified as finance lease. Finance lease iz capitalized at the
inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments.

Subscquent to initial recognition, the capitalized asset is accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy applicable to that asset. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant 1ate of int=rest on the remaining bafance of the liabiliiy. Finance charges are
recognized in profit or loss. ‘
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Leases which do not transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are
recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Associated costs such as maintenance and insurance are expensed as incurred.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are generally expensed as incurred, Borrowing costs are capitalized if

they are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of 2 qualifying asset. The
capitalization of borrowing costs; {a) commences when the activities to prepare the assets
are in progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are being incurred; (b) is suspended
during extended pericds in which active development, improvement and construction of
the assets are interrupted; and (c) ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the assets are complete. These costs are amortized using the straight-line method
over the FUL of the related property, plant and equipment to which it is capitalized.
Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construetion ot
production of a qualifying asset are recognized in. profit or loss using the effective
interest method.

Provisions and Contingencies

A provision is a Hability of uncertain timing or amount. It i recognized when the
Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; it is
probable that an outflow of resources embadying economic benefits will be required to
zettle the obligation: and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are revisited at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pretax rate that reflects the current
market assessment of the time value of money, and, where appropriate, the risks specific
to the lability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized &s interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow cf resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Income Taxes :

Income tax expense is composed of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates 1o items recognized dircctly .
in equity or in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in equity or in
other comprehensive income.

Curreni Terx - : :

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are¢ measured at the
amount cxpected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authority. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred Tox :

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in respect of temporary differences
between the carrving amounts of assets and labilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation purposes and the carryforward tax benelits of the net
operating loss carryover (NOLCO) and the excess of minimum vorporate income tax
(MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax (RCIT). The amount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carmyiy
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amount of assets and lizbilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that

future taxable profits will be availablc against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carryforward tax benefits of NOLCO and MCIT can be utilized.
Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it Is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
aathority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be
realized simultangonsly.

Retirement Plan

The Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering
substantially all of its regular and full time employees. Retirement costs are actuarially
determined using the projected unit credit method which reflect services rendered by
employees to the date of valuation and incorporates assumptions concerning employees’
projected salaries. Actuarial gains and losses that exceed 10% of the greater of the
present value of the Company’s defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan
assets in the prior period are amortized over the expected average working lives of the
participating employees. '

The defined benefit liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation and actuarial gains and losses not recognized reduced by past service cost not
yet recognized and the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be
settled directly. If such aggregate is negative, the asset is measured at the lower of such
aggregate or the aggregate of the cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past
service cost and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions of the plan (the asset
ceiling test). : ‘

The Company recognizes past service cost as an expense on 2 straight-line basis over the
average vesting period. The Company recognizes past service cost immediately to the
extent that the benefits are already vested fotlowing the introduction of, or changes to, the
plan. :

Foreign Currency Transactions
The functional and presentation currency of the Company is the Philippine peso.

Transactions in foreign currencics are recorded in Philippine peso based on the prevailing
exchange rates at the date of the transactions. Foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and liabilities are translated using the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting
date. Exchange gains or losses arising from translation of foreign currency denominated
‘tems at rates different from those at which they were previously recorded are credited or
charged to current operations.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net income by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period, with retroactive adjustments for any stock
dividends declared.

Dilut~d EPS is calculated by dividing the pet income awributable to common

shareholders by the weizhted average number of common shares outstanding during the
year adjusted for the effects of any dilutive potential comman shares.
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Dividends on Comimon Shares

Cash dividends on commion shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity
when approved by the BOD of the Company. Dividends for the year that are approved
after the reporting date are dealt with as a nonadjusting event after the reporting date.

Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities
from which it may eamn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses
that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components. All operating
segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s Chief Executive
‘Officer to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its
performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Post vear-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial
position at the reporting date {adjusting evenis) are reflected in the financial statements.
Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements when material.

4. Financial Risk Management
The Company has exposure tc the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

= Credit Risk
» Liquidity Risk
= Market Risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks,
the Company's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risks, and
the Company's management of capital., Further quantitative disclosures are meluded
throughout these financial statements, mainky in Note 23 to the financial statements.

The main purpose of the Company’s dealings in financial instruments i3 to fund its
operations and capital expenditures.

The BOD. has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. The BOD has established the Executive
Committee (EXCOM), which is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company’s risk management policies. The EXCOM identifies all issucs affecting the
operations of the Company and reports regularly to the BOD on its activities.

The Company’s tisk management policies are established to identify and analyze the
risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk fimits and controls, and to monitor
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. All risks
faced by the Company are incorporated in the annual operating budget. Mitigating
strategies and procedutes are also devised to address the risks that inevitably occur so as
not o affect the Company’s operations and forecasted results. The Company, through its
training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a diseiplined and
constructive control envirgnment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.



The Audit Committee performs oversight over findncial management and internal
control, specifically in the areas of managing credit, liquidity, market and other risks of
the Company. The Audit Committee directly interfaces with the internal audit function,
which undertakes reviews of risk management controls and procedures and ensures the
integrity of internal contro activities which affect the financial management system of
the Company. The results of procedures performed by Internal Audit are reported to the
Audit Committee,

Credit Risk '

Credit risk represents the risk of loss the Company would incur if credit customers and
counterparties fail to perform their contractual obligations. The Company’s credit risk
arises principally from the Company’s trade receivables.

The Plant Credit Committees have established a credit policy under which each new
customer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness before standard credit terms and
conditions are granted. The Company’s review includes the requirements of updated
credit application docurnents, credit verifications through confirmation that there are no
credit violations and that the account is not included in the negative list, and analyses of
financial performance to ensure credit capacity. Credit limits are established for each
customer, which serve as the maximum open amount at which they are aliowed to
purchase on credit, provided that credit terms and conditions are observed.

The credit limit and status of each customer’s account are first checked before processing
a credit tansaction, Customers that fail to meet the Company’s conditions in the credit
checking process may transact with the Company only on cash basis.

It is the Company’s policy to conduct an annual credit review through identification and
summarization of under-performing customers and review and validation of credit
violation reports. Based on the sumimary, the Plant Credit Committees may upgrade,
downgrade, suspend and cancel credit lines.

Most of the Company’s customers have been transacting with the Company for several
vears, and losses have occurred from time 1o time. Customer credit risks are monitored
through annual credit reviews conducted on a per plant basis. Results of credit reviews
are grouped and summarized according to credit characteristics, such as geographic
Jocation, aging profile and credit violations. Historically, credit violations have been
attributable to bounced checks, and denied, fictitious or absconded credit accounts.

Collateral securities are required for credit limit applications that exceed certain
thresholds (see Note 23). The Company has policies for acccptable collateral securities
that may be presented upon submission of credit applications.

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations as they fall due.  The Company manages liquidity risk by forecasting
projected cash flows and maintaining a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility. Treasury controls and procedures are in place to ensure that sufficient cash is
maintained 1o cover daily operational and working capital requirements, as well as capital
expenditures and debt service payments. Management elosely monitors the Company’s
future and contingent obligations and sets up required cash reserves as necessary in
accordance with internal requirements.



In addition, the Company has the following credit facilities:

»  The total commitment as of June 30, 2010 and 2009 under the line of credit is
P2 960 billion and P2.900 billion, respectively, of which the Company had
drawn P283 million and P219 million, respectively, under letters of credit and
short-term loans. All facilities under the omnibus line bear interest at floating
rates consisting of a margin over current Fhilippine reasury rates; and

= P725 million and P580 million domestic bills purchased line, which were
available as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as commodity prices, foreign
cxchange rates, interest rates and other market prices will affect the Company’s income
or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while op,timizing the return.

The Company is subject to various market risks, inciuding risks from changes i
commodity prices, interest rates and cusrency exchange rates.

Commodiry Prices

The risk from eommodity price changes relates to the Company’s ability to recover
higher product costs through price increases to CUSIOMETS, which may be limnited due to
the competitive pricing environment that exists in the Philippine beverage market and the
willingness of consumers to purchase the same volume of beverages at higher prices. The
Company’s most significant commodity exposure is to the Philippine sugar price.

The Company minimizes its exposure to risks in changes in commodity prices by
entering into contracts with suppliers with duration ranging from six months to one year;
with fixed volume commitment for the contract duration; and with stipulation for price
adjustments depending on market prices. The Company has outstanding purchase
commitment amounting to P1.330 billion as of June 30, 2010. The EXCOM considered
the exposure to commodity price risk to be insignificant.

[nterest Rate Risk

The Company's exposure to the risk for changes in market interest rate relates pritarily
to its debt obligations with variable interest rates. The Treasury Department, due 1o its
competencies of managing debt obligations, transacts with credifors to ensure the most
advantageous terms and to reduge EXpOsUIe to risk of changes in market interest rate.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Compauy 15 exposed to foreign currency risk on purchases that are denominated in
currencies other than the Philippine peso, mostly in U.$. doilar and EURQO. In respect of
monetary assets and liabilities held in currencies other than the Philippine peso, the
Company ensures that its exposure i3 kept to an acceptable level, by maintaining short-
term cash placements in U.S. dollar and buying foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances. The EXCOM considered the exposure to
foreien currency risk 10 e insignificant, Further, the Company does not hold any
vestment in foreign securities as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, '



Capi anagement

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to increase the value of
shareholders® investment and maintain reasonable growih by applying free cash flow to
selective . investments that would further the Company’s product and geographic
diversification. The Company sets strategies with the objective of establishing a versatile
and resourceful financial management and capital structure.

The Chief Financial Officer has overall respomsibility for monitoring of capital in
proportion to risk, Profiles for capital ratios are set in the light of changes in the
Company’s external environment and the risks underlying the Company’s business
operations and industry. '

The Company defines capital as total equity shown in the statements of financial
position.

There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the
year and the Company is not subject to externally-imposed capital requirements.

5. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

2010 2009

Cash on hand and in banks " P253,613 P210,308
Short-term investments | 390,000 202,780
P643,613 P413,088

Cash in banks earns interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term investments
are made for varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Company and earn interest at the respective short-term investment
rates.

The Company’s exposures io interest rate risk and sensitivity analyses are disclosed in
Note 23.

6, Receivables

Receivables consist of:

: Note 2014 2009

Trade ' ‘ 23 P1,124,733 P1,081,531
(Others 23 59,176 56,731
‘ ' 1,183,909 1,138,262

Less allowance for impairment losses 108,489 150,297

P1,075,420 P987,965

Trade receivab'ss arc noninterest-bearing and are aenerally on a 30 to 60 days term.
Other reseivables consist maimnly of receivaoles from: employees, freizht and insurance
claims.
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7. Inmventories

The movements in allowance for impairment Josses on receivables are as follows:

| 2010 . 2005
Trade  Others Trade  Others

Balance at beginning of year P125512 P24,785 P75216 P26,856
Impairment Josses (recovery on
_impairment losses) recognized during

the year (10,638) (5,017 53,118 304
Write-offs during the year {23,412) (2,741)  (2,832) (2,375)
Balance at end of year ~ P91462 P17.027 P125.512 P24,785

The Company’s exposute 1o credit risk related to trade and other receivables is disclosed
in Note 23. '

Inventories consist of:

o Note 2019 20049

Finished goods: : 11

At cost | P387,887 P325,527

At net realizable value 383,579 322,427
Work in process: 1

At cost 14,482 9.475

At net realizable value 14,482 - 9475
Raw and packaging materials: 11

Atcost 337,730 286,956

At net realizable value 325,524 272,242
Spare parts and supplies:

At cost - 106,883 99,933

At net realizable value 101,582 990,819
Total inventories at lower of cost or net

realizable value P825,467 P703,963

Under the terms of agreements covering liabilities under trust receipts, certain inventories
have been released to the Company in trust for certain local banks. The Company is
accountable to these banks for the trusted inventories (see Note 11).

Write-down of inventories to net realizable value amounted to P6 million and
p24 million in 2010 ana 2009, respectively, and is included as part of “Cost of Goods

Sold™ account in the statements of comprehensive income:

The Company’s notes payable are secured by maortgage trust indentures on various assets,
which include P284 million of inventories as of June 30, 2009.
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8. Investments in Associates

Investments in associates consist of:

Percentage (%)

of Ownership
2010 2009 2010 2009
Acquisition cost:
Nadeco Realty Corporation (NRC) 40%  40% P232,508 P232.508
Nadeco Holdings Corporation (NHC) 40%  40% 132 132
232,640 232,640
Effect of dilution of ownership in NRC (1,018) - (1,018)
231,622 231,622
Accumulated equity in net earnings:
Balance ai beginning of year 296,101 293,880
Equity in net earnings for the year 2,265 2,221
Balance at end of year 298,366 296,101
P529,988 P327,713

The financial reporting date of NRC and NHC is June 30.

As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, the undistributed eamings of the associates included in the
Company’s retained earnings amounting to P298 million and P296 million, respectively,
are not available for distribution to stockholders unless declared by the associates.

Summarized financial information pertaining to the Company’s associates:

As of June 30, 2010

- Assets  Liabilities Equity  Revenues Net Income

NRC P799.456 P278,256 P521,200 P1O,579 r2,131

_NHC (consolidated) 793,937 278,164 521,793 10,579 2,477
As of June 30, 2009

Assats Liahilities Equity Revenues  Net Income

NRC P730,118 P211,048 P519,070 PH),580 P1,994

NHC {consolidated) 730,622 211,305 519,317 13,581 2,377
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9, Bottles and Cascs
Bottles and cases consist of:

Note ‘ 2010 2009

Deposit values of returnable botties and

cases on hand - net of allowance for

unusable containers of Pl 3,128 in 2010 .

and P16,714 in 2009 11 P204,639 P353,658
Excess of cost over deposit values of

returnable bottles and cases - net of

accumulated amortization® Il 2,014,982 2,078,068
2,309,641 2,433,726
Bottles and shells in transit 15,648 7,472

P2,325,289 P2.A41,1938

% This includes pallets under finanee lease with met book vatue of P99 million and pR5 million as of fune 30, 2010 and
2009, respectively.

The rollforward of excess of cost over deposit values of returnable bottles and ¢ases is a3

follows:
2010 2009
Gross carrying amonnt 3
Ralance at beginning of year : P35,250,140 P4317.702
_Additions ‘ 499,939 932,438
Ralance at the end of year 5,730,079 5,250,140
Accumulated amortization :
Balance at beginning of year 3,172,072 2,682,212
Amortization for the year 564,021 494,091
Other movements (9%0) {4,231)
Balance at the end of year 3,735,097 3,172,072

Carrying amount :
Batance at end of ycar P2,014,982 P2,078,068

*+ Thie includes pallets under finance lease of P1IG million and P8% mitlion as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively,
with related accumulated amortization amounting to P21 million and P4 million as of Jyne 30, 2010 and 2009,

respectively, and net book value of P9% million and P24 million as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

A portion of the Company’s bottles and cases with a total collateral value of P4.000
‘ billion are morigaged and placed in trust under two mortgage trust indentures to secure
; the Company’s outstanding notes payabie as of June 30, 2009 (see Note 11}-




10. Property, Plant and Equipment

The movements in this account are as follows:

Buildings and

Machinery and Leasehold Construction Furniture

Qther Equipment Improvements  in Progress  and Fixtures Total
Gross carrying amount:
July 1, 2008 76,290,757 F638.272 F212.234 P26,608 P1187.875
Additions 715,130 116,621 . 2713 333,864
Disposalsiwrite-offs (92,842} (11,126) - (162) (104,130}
Transfers ‘ 179 483 (482 (178,934} (87 -
June 30,2009/ July 1. 2009 7,092,528 762,675 33312 29092 7917607
Additions 37z Mo 75,343 230,575 1,515 579,743
Dispasais/write-offs {113,510} (703 - (303)  (113,885)
June 30, 2010 7,351,028 837,948 263337 30,602 PRABIAGS
Accumitlated depreciation

and amortization: :

July §, 2008 © 3,893,794 411,598 - 21,022 4,326,414
Depreciation and amortization 498,218 36,497 - 1,078 535,793
Disposals/wrie-ofts ' (92.447) {7,594) - (160) {100,601
Tun= 30, 2006 uly 1, 2009 4299 563 440,101 - 21,940 4,761,606
Depreciation and amartization 534,646 47,375 - 1272 583,293
Drisposals/write-offs (104,741) {33) - (308 (105,081)
June 30, 201G 4,729,470 457,441 - 22,987 5,239,518
Carrying amount: ' '
June 30, 2009 P2.752,663 P322.574 P33312 F7,152 P3,156,001
June 30, 210 P2,621,558 P350,547 pP263,887 P7,695 P3.243,547

A substantial portion of the Company’s property, plant and equipment and certain parcels
of land owned by NRC with a total collateral value of P1.400 billion as of June 30, 2009
is mortgaged and placed in trust under two mortgage trust indentures to secure the
Company’s outstanding notes payable as of June 30, 2009 (see Notes 11 and 14).

Change in EUL of Marketing Equipment

During the fiscal year 2009, the Company reassessed the EUL of its marketing
equipment. The said equipment, which is included as part of property, plant and
equipment under “Machinery and Other Equipment” account, with previous EUL of five
years is estimated to remain in operations for seven years from the date of purchase. The
effect of change in depreciation expense is as follows:

2009 2010 2011 2012 Beyond 2012

Increase (decrease) in
depreciation expense (P91,548)  (P70,604)  (P48,103) (P19312)  P229,567

‘The Company has ongoing definite corporate expansion projects or programs approved
by the BOD. As a result of this expansion program, the Company spent for property,
plant and equipment as well as bottles and shells amounting to P1.127 billion in 2010,
P1.802 billion in 2009 and P1.9%1 billion in 2008, doubling the capital expenditures in
previous years. To this date, the Company continues to invest in" major capital
expenditures in order to complete the remaining expansion projects lined up.



11. Notes Payable

This account represents short-term loans from various local banks which are payable in
lump sum on their respective maturity dates up to November 14, 2009, Interest rates on

. the said loans are repriced monthly based on negotiated rates or prevailing market rates.
The short-term loans are secured by mortgage trust indentures on inventories, bottles and
cases, and real estate, which include certain restrictions and requirements. In fiscal year
2010, the said loans were fully settled.

Interest rates rangé from 6.00% 10 6.50% for 2009 and 6.00% to 6.253% for 2008, Interest
expense on notes payable recognized in profit or loss amounted to P3 million, P22
million and P36 million for 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Information about the Company’s exposures to interest rate risk and liquidity risk is
disclosed in Note 23,

12. Accounts Payable and Accrucd Expenscs

Accounts payable and acerued expenses consist of:

Note 2010 2009

Trade pavables A 1,468,984 P1,228.174
Accrued advertising and marketing 186,420 147,319
Accrued retirement ¢ost - current 24 37.875 82,324
Non-trade payables 77,840 104,505
Other accrued expenses 27 591,751 506,584
P2.412,870 P2.068,906

The Company’s other accrued expenses consist mainly of accruals for salaries and
wages, other employze benefits, utilities and other operating expenses, and current
portion of obligations under finance Jease.

The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk related to trade and other payables is disclosed
in Note 23,

13. Income Taxes

The components of the income tax expense are as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Current tax expense and final taxes on ‘
interest income: .
Current period P299,618 P324,832 - P81302
Prior period - - (171,236)
Deferred tax expense from '
origination and reversal of
temporary differences and others 16,164 56,907 330,156
' p318,792 F381,739 P240,222




Deferred tax liabilities - net are attributable to the following:

2018 2009
Allowance for probable losses in values of bottles
and cases, impainment losses, inventory
obsolescence and other provisions P93,480 PR0,712
Accrual for retirement costs 63,454 64,246
Past service ¢ost 35,270 34,079
192,234 179,037
Bottles and cases (414,853) {(396,075)
_Marketing equipment (169,268) (158,685)
{584,121) (554,760)
(P391,887) (P375,723)

In 2009, the Company applied the MCIT (incurred in 2008) amounting to P29 million as

tax credit against its RCIT.

In 2008, the Company received a ruling from the Bureau of Internal Revenue {BIR)
which allowed acceleration.of deductions on marketing equipment and bottles and cases.

The reconcitiation of the income tax expense computed at the statutory income tax rate to
the income tax expense shown in the statements of comprehensive income is as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Income before income tax P1,054468  P1,181,429  P1,000919
Tax rate at 30% in 2410, 32.5% in
2009 and 35% in 2008 P316.340 P383,964 P350,322
Additions to (reductions in} income
tax resulting from the tax effects of!
Nondeductible expenses 2,840 1,704 2,757
Interest income subjected to final tax {2,708) (4,358) (6,565)
Equity in net earnings of associates (680) (722) (7,010)
Change in tax rai¢ - 1,192 (51,607)
Transaction cost charged to equity - - (48.204)
Others - (41) 529
P315,792 P381,739 P240,222

On May 24, 2005, Republic Act No. 9337 entitled “An Act Amending the National
Internal Revenue Code, as Amended, with Salient Features™ (Act), was passed into a law
effective November 1, 2005. The Act includes the following significant revisions to the

rules of taxation, among others:

a. Reduction in the corporate income tax rate from 35% to 30% starting January 1, 2009

and onwards; and

b. Reduction in the alowable deduction of interest expense from 42% to 33% of

interest income subject to final tax beginning January 1, 2009.
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14, Related Party Transactions

Related party relationship exists when one party has ability to control, directly or
indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making the financial and operating decisions. Such
relationship also exists between and/or among entities which are under commeon control
with the reporting enterprises, or between and/or among the reporting enterprises and
their key management personnel, directors, or its stockholders.

The Company has significant related party transactions which are summarized as
follows: : ‘

a. The Company has Exclusive Bottling Agrecments with PepsiCo, Inc. (¥PepsiCo™),
stockholder, which has 20.49% beneficial interest in the Company, up 10 year 2017
and Pepsi Lipton International Limited (“Pepsi Lipton™), a joint venture of PepsiCo
and Unilever N.V., up to year 2012, Under the agreements, the Company s
authorized to bottle, sell and distribute Pepsi and Lipton beverage products in the
Philippines. In addition, PepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton shall supply the Company with
the main raw matetials (concentrates) in the production of these beverage products -
and share in the funding of certain marketing programs. The agreements may be
renewed by mutual agreement between the parties. Under the agreements, PepsiCo
and Pepsi Lipton have the right to terminate the contracts under certain conditions,’
including failure to comply with terms and condiions of the appointment subject to
written notice and rectification period, change of ownership control of the Company,
change of ownership control of an entity which controls the Company,
discontinuance of bottling beverages for 30 consecutive days, occurrence of certain
events leading to the Company’s insolvency or bankruptey, change in management
and control of the business, among others. Total net purchases from PepsiCo,
amounted to P2.944 billion, P2.578 billion and P2.416 billion for the years ended
June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Total purchases from Pepsi Lipton for
the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 amounted to P99 mitlion, P81 million
and P94 million, respeetively.

The Company has a cooperative advertising and marketing program with PepsiCo
and Pepsi Lipton that sets forth the agreed advertising and marketing activities and .
participation arrangement during the yecars covered by the bottling agreements. In
certain instances, the Company pays for the said expenses and claims reimbursement
from PepsiCo. For the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008, the Company
incurred marketing expenses amounting to P302 millien, P521 million and P665
million, respectively. The Company’s outstanding receivable from PepsiCo included
under “Due from related parties” account in the statements of financial position,
which are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and payable on demand amounted to P3
million znd P27 million as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

b. On April 11, 2007, the Company entered into a Performance Agreement with
PepsiCo to meet certain marketing and investment levels from 2007 to 2017, as
required by the bottling agreement with PepsiCo. The agreement requires the
Company to: (1) spend a specified percentage with a minimum amount for the
beverage products; (2) make certain mvestments based on a minimum percentage of
the Company’s sales to expand the Company’s manufacturing capacity; (3) invest it
a minimum number of coclers per year io support distmbution expansion; and
(4) expand the Company’s distribuiion capabilities in terms of the number of active
routes, the number of new routes and the number of trucks used for diswibution
support.
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Certain parcels of land properties of NRC, an associate, were mortgaged to secure a
portion of the Company’s notes payable. The Company leases these parcels of land
where some of its bottling plants are located. L.ease expenses recognized amounted to
P10 million, P10 million and P11 million for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009
and 2008, respectively. The Company has advances to NRC amounting to P38
million which bear interest at a fixed rate of 10% per annum and which are unsecured
and payable on demand. The Company also has outstanding net receivables from
NRC, amounting to P119 miilion and P50 million as of June 30, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, which are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and payable on demand. The
advances and receivables are included under “Due from related parties” account in
the statemenits of financial position.

The Company has outstanding working capital advances to NHC, an associate,
amounting to P3 million and P2 million a5 of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively,
and which are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and payable on demand. The advances
are included under *Due from related parties” account in the statements of financial
position. .

In addition to their salaries, the Company also provides noncash benefits to key
management personne! and contributes to @ defined benefit retirement plan on their

behalf,

The compensation and benefits of key management personnel are as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Short-term employee benefits P87,114 p70.721 P78,304
Post-employment benefits 3,159 3.7%4 3,721
P90,273 P74.475 P82,025
15. Net Bales
Net sales consist of:
2010 2009 2008
Gross sales . P18,789,186 P16,600,329  P15,283,095
Less sales returns and discounts 2,660,341 2,368,284 2,302,209
P16,128,845 -P14,232,045 P12,980,886
16. Cost of Goods Sold
Cost of goods sold consists of:
Note 2010 2009 2008
Materials and supplies used 14 P9,073,587 P7,547,548 P6.617,972
Delivery and freigut 562,493 769,511 713,597
Depreciation and amortization 19 841,738 754,666 654,400
Rental and utilities ' 14,27 295,250 268,318 261,934
Personnei exyenies 2024 189,491 249 359 258,737
g Others 555,344 453,316 367,466
i P11917,003 P10,042,738  P8,874,106

]
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17. Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution eXpenscs consist of;

Note 2010 2009 2008
Distribution , P502,806 P470,626 P438,582
Personne] expenses 20, 24 415,835 408,061 434,600
Delivery and freight 286,638 230,101 193,776
Depreciation .18 271,359 233,383 269,348
Rental and utilities . i4,27 124,876 122,723 131,703
Others 403,436 437,680 362,300
P2,004,950 P1,902.574 P1,830,309
18, Generat and Administrative Expenses
General and administrative expenses consist of:
Note 2010 2009 2008
Personnel expenses 20, 24 P333,132 F291,069 P344 817
Outside services : 118,026 106,881 73,883
Rental and utilities i1, 27 100,790 90,154 58,838
Others 19 156,144 132,746 140,542
FP708,0692 - P620,850 P643,080
19. Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization are distributed as follows:
Note 201¢ 2009 2008
Cost of goods sold 16 P841,738 P754,666 P634,400
- Selling and distribution 17 271,359 233,383 269,343
General and administrative I8 34,217 37,775 45,863
P1,147,314 P1,025,824 P969,611
20, Personnel Expenses
Note 2010 2009 2008
Salaries and wages P984,995 P913,698 P970.446
Retirerment cost 24 53,460 34,791 67,708
F1,038,458 P948,489  P1,038,154




The above amounts are distributed as follows:

Note 2010 2009 2008
Cost of goods sold 16 P289,491 P249,359 P258,737
Selling and digtribution 17 415,835 408,061 434,600
General and administrative /8 333,132 291,069 344,817
P1,038,458 P948.489  P1,038,154
21, Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) i

Basic EPS is computed as follows:
2010 2006 2008
Net income (a) P738,676 P799,690 P760,697
Issued shares at beginning of the year  3,0693,772,279 3,603,772,279 3,312,989,386
Effect of shares issued during the year - - 158,659,539

Weighted average number of shares
outstanding (b)

Basic/Diluted EPS (a/b}

3,693,772,279 3,471,648,925
P0.22 P0.22

3,693,772,279
P0.20

As of June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008, the Company has no dilutive equity instruments.

22. Segment Information

A3 discussed in the 1, the Company is engaged in the manufacture, sales and
distribution of C5D and NCB. The Company’s main products under its C5D category
include brands Pepsi-Cola, 7Up, Mountain Dew and Mirinda. The NCB brand category

includes Gatorade, Tropicana/Twister, Lipton and the recently introduced Sting energy
drink and Propel fitness water. ‘

The Company operates under two (2) reportable operating segments, the CSD and NCB
categories,

Analysis of financial information by operating segment is as follows:

Carbonated Soft Drrinks MNoncarbonated Beverages Cambined
__[In 00000 "5) 20190 2009 2008 HH 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008
Net Salex -
Fxternal sales PF13.500 F12,547 P12,390 P5,12% PR3 P2EYS P15,789 P16s00  PISZ83
Sales diseounta and retums {,091) (1,253} (1,985) {56%) (415) (317 {2,660} 2.368) (2.302)
Het sales P11,469 Fip 594  F10,405 4,660 P3.638 P:576 Fleliy  Pi4232 PI238]
Result .
Segment resuli* F1,9%4 P3IIE P92 P1,217 P1.ON PE1S Pd,211 P4,18% P4,107
Unallocated expenses {3,213) {3,0a4) {3,143}
Interest and fisancing
EXPETSES . - {2) (22) (36)
Equity in net earnings of
ATHOLIATES 2 2 0
Interest income 13 17 )
Cither income - net dh 40 3G
{nzome tan =xpenie [216) [352Y (2402
MNet income F739 Fiuu PTG
Forward
e A

ana non-carbonated boverages, hence, the assets and lLabilities are not directly
attributable to a segment and cannot be allocated into each segment on a reasonable
basis,

Major Customer
The Company does not have any single external customer from which sales revenue
generated amounted to 10% or more of the net sales.

23. Financial Instruments

Credit Risk

The carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the Company’s maximum credit
exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30 is as follows:

2010 2009
Recciyables - net P1.075,420 - PO§7,065
Cash in banks and cash equivalents 471,606 273,673
Due from related parties | 165,085 116,454
‘ F1712,111 P1.378,092
The aging of trade receivables is as follows:
June 30, 2010 June 30, 200§

Gross Amount  Impairment  Gross Amount Impairment

Current P695,028 P - P649.654 P -

Past due 1-30 davs 271,680 - 229 850 -

- Past due 31-60 days 43.540 - 51,808 -
Morg than 60 dav, 114,455 91,462 156,219 125,512
P1.124.733 Po1.462 P1,081,531 P125,512

TR
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Various coliateral securities such as bank guaraniees, time deposits, surety bands, real
¢state and/or chattel mortgages are held by the Company for trade receivables exceeding
certain amounts. The aggregate fair market value of thesc collateral securities amounted
to P149 million as of June 30, 2010 and 2009. ‘ ‘

As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, the Company assessed that the amounts due from related
parties are not impaired and are collectible in full. In addition, other receivables are not
impaired and are collectible, except for P17 million and P25 million for which an
altowance was provided as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Company. Cash in banks
and cash equivalents are of high grade quality. Of the total receivables and due from
related parties as of June 30, 2010 anid 2009 which are neither past due nor impaired,
99.2% is of high grade quality and the balance is of standard quality,

The credit qualities of finuncial assets are determined as follows:

* Cash in banks and cash equivalents are based on the credit standing or rating of
the counterparty.

* Total receivables and due from rclated parties are based on 2 combination of
credit standing or rating of the counterparty, historical experience and specific
and collective credit risk assessment, High grade quality financial assets are
those assessed as having minimal credit risk, otherwise they are of standard

quality.
Liquidity Risk
The table summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial assets and
financial habilities based on contractual undiscounted amounts:

As of June 30, 2010

. Moaore than
. Carrying Contractual One year one year to
atopnt cash flow or less five years
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents P643,613 Pad3,613 P643,613 P -
Receivables - pet 1,075 420 1,075,420 - L075,420 -
Due from related partieg 165,085 165,085 165,085 -
1,884,118 PI1,884,118 P1,B84,118 P -
Financial liabikities:
Accounts payablc and
accrued expenses F2,240,450 P2,240,450 P1,240 450 F -
Other noncurrent liabilities 69,284 84,558 - 84,558
P2,309,734 F2,325,008 P2,240,450 D84,558

-79 .



As of June 30, 2009

. . More thar
Carrying Contractual One year one yaar to
amount cash flow or less five years
Financial aszets:
Cash and cash equivalents P413.088 P413,088 P413,088 P -
Receivables = net . 987,963 087,965 987,945 -
Due from relaed parties 116,454 116,454 116,454 -
P1,517,507 F1,317,507 F1.517,507 P -
Financial liabilities; ‘ :
Notes payable PS0,00¢ P30,124 P30, 124 B .
Accounts payable and accrued
EXpenses 1,977,426 1,977,426 1,977,426 -
Qther nonzurrent liabilitizs 69,474 91.477 - 91,477
P2.096,900 F2,119,027 P2.027,550 Pl 477

It is not expected that the cash flows ‘included in the maturity analysis could occur
significantly earlier, or at significantly different amoupts,

Financial Assets Used for Managing Liguidity Risk

The Company considers expected cush flows from financial assets in assessing and
managing liquidity risk. To manage s liquidity risk, the Company forecasts cash flows
from operations for the pext six months which will result in additional avaiiable cash
resources and enable the Company to meet its expected cash outflow requirements.

Interest Rate Risk
The mterest rates profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as

follows:

B 2010 2009

Financial assets P396,060 - P222,553
Financial liabilities - {50,000)

P300.000 P172.553

Sensitivity Analysis
A 2% increase in interest rates would have increased equity and profits for the years
ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 by P6 million, P3 million and P4 million,

respectively.

A 2% decrease in interest rates for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 would
have had the equal but opposite effect, on the basis that all other variables remain

constant.

The interest rate risk’s sensitivity analysis is based on interest rate variance that the
Company considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting date.

Fair Values

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities approximate the carrying amounts
due tc the short-term nature of these financial instruments and the interest rates that they
carTy approximate interest rates for comparable instruments in the market.



24, Retirement Pian

The Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering
substantially all of its régular and full time employees. The Company has a Retirement
Committee that sets the policies for the plan and has appointed two Philippine banks as
trustees to manage the retirement fund pursuant to the plan, Annual cost is determined
using the projected unit credit method, The Company’s latest actuarial valuation date is
June 30, 2010. The actuarial valuation is made on an annual basis.

The reconciliation of the assets and liabilities recognized in the statements of financial
position is shown below:

‘ 2010 2009
Present value of defined benefit obligation P425,945 P382,590
Fair value of plan assets ‘ 214,844 175,708
Unfunded obligations 211,101 206,882
Unrecognized net actuarial gains 512 1,272
Accrued retirement cost , - P211,613 P214,154

The current portion of accrued retirement cost included under “Accounts payable and
accrued expense™ account in the statements of financial position amounted to P88 miliion
and P82 million as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively, while the noncurent portion -
included under “Other noncurrent liabilities™ account in the statements of financial
position amounted to P139 miilion and P131 million as of June 30, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

The components of retirement cost recognized in profit or loss are as follows:

~ 2010 2009 2008
Interest cost P34,052 P32,742 P33,649
Current service cost 20,022 26,619 35,469
Expected return on plan assets (9,614) (20,905) (15,387)
Past service cost S - 13,977
Amortization of unrecognized net

actuarial gain - {3,665) -
Net retirement cost P53.460 P34,791 P67,708

Actual return on plan assets P2,892 P12,363 P3,725

The Company’s retirement cost is allocated between “Cost of Goods Seld” account in the
statements of comprehensive income, which amounted to P3 millionr, P6 million and P14
million in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and “Operating Expenses” account in the
staternents of cOmprehenswe income which amounted to P48 million, P28 mllhon and
P53 million in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

-~ 31 -



The changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2010 2009

Balance at beginning of ycar P382,590 P333,886

_ Interest cost 34,052 32,742
Current service cost 29,022 26,619
Actuarial loss ‘ : 38 65,694
Benefits paid (19,757 (76,351)
Balance at end of year P425,945 P382 590

The mavements in the fair value of plan assets are shown below:

o 2010 2009

Balance at beginning of year P175,708 P195,117
Contributions 56,000 48,000
Expected return 9,614 20,905
Net actuarial loss (6,721) (11,963
Benefits paid (19,75'h (76,351)

Baiance at end of year : P214.844 P175,708

Principal actuarial assumptions used in determining retirement cost at reporting date
(expressed as weighted averages) are as follows:

Annual rates 2010 2009
Discount rate : 8.75% 9.25%
Expected rate of retum on plan assets 4.50% 4,75%
Rate of future salary increase 5.00% 5.00%

The Company’s plan assets consist of 99% investment in fixed income securities and 1%
investments in shares of stocks both in 2010 and 2009,

The overall expected return on plan assets is based on the portfolio as a whole and not on
the sum of the returns on individual asset categoties. The return is based exclusively on

the historical returns, without adjustments.

The historical information of the amounts is as follows:

2010 2009 2008 2007 2008

Present value of the defined .

benefit obligation P425,945 P382.590 P333,886 P3166,031  P406,053
Fair value of plan assely 214,844 173,708 195117 148,454 111,472
Deficit in the plan (211,101} {206,882} {138,765 (217577 (297,383)
Experience adjustments on .

plan liabilities toss {gain) (20,179 20,706 . (5,603} (42,187}
Experience adjustments on

plan assets loss (11,721) (11,9633 {11.662) (19.244) -

The Company’s expected contribution to the plan for the fiscal year 2011 is P& million.
Any future contribution to the plan is determined taking into account the cash flow and
financial condition as of the date of intended date of contribution as well as other faciars
as the Coampany may consider relevant, ' ' '

.2
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25, Capital Stock

This account consists of:

2010 2009 2008

Shares Amount Shares Amaung Shares Amount
Authorized - P0.15° ]
par vatue 5,000,600,000 730,000  5,000,000,000 P750.000  5,000,000,000 F750,000
Issued and outstanding:
Bafance at beginning of
year 3,693,772.279 P554.066 5693772279 P354.060 3312989386 P46 948
[zsuznce during the year - - - 380,782,893 37118

Balance at end of year 3,693,772,179 P354,066  3.693,772279 P354,066 3693772279 P354,066

On February 1, 2008, the Company’s initial public offering of 1,142,348,680 shares at
P3.50 per share culminated with the listing and trading of its shares of stocks under the
First Board of the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. Of the total shares offered,
380,782,893 shares pertain to the primary offering, which resulted in an increase in
capital stock amounting to P57 million and additional paid-in capitai of P1.2 billion, net
of P138 million transaction cost that is accounted for as a reduction in equity.

The Company has approximately 657 and 638 holders of each class of common equity
securities with the PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipino} and (Non-Filipino) considered
as two holders as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively, based on the number of
accounts registered with the Stock Transfer Agent.

26. Retained Earnings

- The BOD approved several declarations of cash dividends amounting to P554 million in
2010, P369 million in 2009 and P400 million in 2007, There were no cash dividends
declarations in 2008, Details of the declarations are as follows:

Fayable to

Dividend Per Stockholders of
Date of Declaration Share "Record as of Date of Payment
June 21, 2007 P0.12 June 21, 2007 August 20, 2007
September 30, 2008 .10 CQrctober 15, 2008 November 7, 2008
September 30, 2009 0.15 October 15, 2009 October 29, 2009

The Company has dividend policy to declare dividends to stockholders of record, which
are paid from unrestrizted retained eamings. Any future dividends it pays will be at the
discretion of the BOD after taking into account the Company’s earnings, cash flow,
financial position, capital and operating progress, and other factors as the BOD may
consider relevant, Subject to the foregoing, the policy is to pay up to 50% of the annual
net income as dividends. This policy may be subject to future revisions.
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27. Commitments and Contingencies

a,

Leases

Operating Leases

The Company leases, from third parties and NRC, certain parcels of land where
its bottling plants and warehouses are located for a period of one to twenty-five
vears and are renewable for another one to twenty-five vears, None of these
lcases includes contingent rentals, Rent cxpense pertaining to these lcased
properties amounted to P69 million in 2010, P73 million in 2009, and PSO
million in 2008 (see Notes 14, 16, 17 and 18).

Future minimum lease payments under such noncancelable operating leases are
as follows:

2010 2009 2008

Less than one year P64.441 P63.803 P74.020
Between one and five years 201,375 204,332 235,534
More than five years 188,186 197.32] 227,158
P454,002 P463.4356 F540,692

Finance Lease

The Company has lease agreements covering certain pallets and power
generation facilities in one of its plants for periods ranging from 5 to 10 years.
Future minimum lease payments and their present value are as follows:

2010 . 2009
Future Present value Future Presant vatue
minimum of minimum minimpm of minimum
lease fease tease lease
pavments Ingerest payments payments Interest PRYTDEDNLS
lL.ess than one
vear P26,521 P53%8 FP25983 P16,136 " PE77 P15279
Between one .
and five years 84,558 15274 69,284 91,477 22,003 69474
Mare than five ‘
years 136,351 3,760 130,591 - - -

P247.430 PI1.571 F215,858 P1G7.633 P22.850 F84,753

The current portion of the present value of minimum lease obligations which is
included under “Accounts payable and accrued expense” account int the
statements of financial position amounted to P27 million and P16 million as of
June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively, while the noncurrent portion which is
included under “Other noncurrent liabilities™ account in the staternents of
financial position amounted to P69 million and P70 million as of June 30, 2010
and 2009, respactively,

The lease agreement on the power generation facilities has not yet commenced
and the Company is expecting to use the said facilities next fiscal year, thus, no
assets and liabilities have been recognized as of June 30, 2010.

Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. The average effective interest rate
contracted approximates 6.0% 10 6.5% per annum. There were no unguaranteed
residual values of assets leased unde. finance lease agreements as of June 30,
2010 and 2009. '



The Company is a party to a number of lawsuits and claims relating to tax, labor and
other issues arising out of the normal course of its business, Management and its tax
and legal counsels believe that the outcome of these lawsuits and claims will not
materially affect the financial position, financial performance or liquidity of the
Company.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc.
Km. 29, National Road

Tunasan, Muntinlupa City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the accompanying
financial statements of Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc. included in this Form 17-A and have
issued our report thereon dated September 9, 2010,

Qur audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole, Schedules A to K (collectively referred to as “Schedules™), as listed in the Index to
Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules, are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. These Schedules are presented for purposes of complying with the Securities
Regulation Code Rule 68.1 and are not part of the basic financial statements. These Schedules
have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, the financial statements data
required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
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Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc.

K. 29, National Road
Tunansan, Muntinlupa City

SCHEDULE OF RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR

DIVIDEND DECLARATION

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted 1o,
available for dividend distribution, begirning

Add: Netincome actually earned/realized during the period
Net income during the period closed to Retained Earnings

Less: Non actual/unrealized income net of tax
Equity in net eamnings of associates
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net
Untealized actuanal gain
Fair value adjustment (M2M Gains)
Fair vatue adjustment of investment property resulting to gain
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP -gain
Other unrealized gains or adjustments to retained earnings
as a result of certain transactions accounted for under PFRS

Subtotal

Add: Non-actual losses
Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax)
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRE/GAAP -loss
Loss on fair value adjustment of investment property (afier tax)

Net income actually earned during the period

Add(less):
Dividend Declaration during the period
Appropriation of Retained Farnings during the pertod
Reversals of Appropriation
Effects of prior period adjustments
Treasury shares

Total Retained Earnings, End - Available for Dividend

P3,957.234

738.676

4,693,645

4,693,645

(554,066)

P4,139,579




PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, iNC.
Hchadule A, Marketable Securities - (Current Marketable Equity Securitfes and Other Shortterm Cash Investments)

arne of Issuing entity and [Number of shares JAmount shown in [Valued based  {Income
aseociation of each issue  Jor principal amount {the balance shest fon market recelved and
(1) of bonds and notes §(2) quotation at accrued
. balance sheet
date (2)

NOT APPLICABLE
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10.

11.

12.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM17-A
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES
For the fiscal year ended 30 June 2010
SEC ldentification Number 0000160968 3. BIR Tax identification No. 000-168-541

Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter. PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, ING.

Province, Country or other jurisdiction of 8. Industry Classification Code:
incorporation or organization: Philippines (SEC Use Only)

Addrass of principal office: Km, 29 National Road, Tunasan Muntinlupa City Postal Cade: 1773

Issuer's telephone number, including area code: (632) 850-7901 to 20

Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since lagt report: not applicable
Securities registerad pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Sec. 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Cormnmon Stack
Quistanding and Amount of Debt Qutstanding
- as of June 30, 2008
Common Shares of Stock 3,693,772,27%

Are any or all of these securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes [X] No[ ]

if yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securitics listed therein:

Philippine Stock Exchange - Common Shares of Stock
Check whether the issue:

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17 1 thereunder
of Section 11 of the RSA and R3A Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of The
Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding tweive (12) monthe (or for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to file such reports);

Yes [x] Nof ] ‘

(b) The Registrant has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days,
Yes{x] Nof[ ]



13. State the aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant. The
aggregate market value shall be computed by reference to the price at which the sfock was sold, or
the average bid and asked prices of such stock, as of a specified date within sixty (60) days prior to
the date of filing. If & deterrmination as to whether a particular person or entity is an affiliate cannot be
made without involving unreasonable effort and expense, the aggregate market value of the common
stock held by non-affiliates may be calculated on the basis of assumptions reasonable under the
circumstances, provided the assumptions are set forth in this Form,

Aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant - 83,752 million as
of August 31, 2010.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
14. The following documents are incorporated in this report:

(a) 2010 Audited Financial Statements attached as Exhibit | hereof; and
(b) Statement of Management Responsibility attached as Exhibit il hergof.



PART | - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

(1) Business Developmant

a.

(2)

. Pringipal products

Form and Date of Organization

The Company was registered with the Philippine Securities and. Exchange Commission onh March &,
1989, primarily fo engage in manufacturing, sales and distribution of carbonated soft-drinks and non-
carbonated beverages to retail, wholesale, restaurants and bar trades. The registered office address
and principa! place of business of the Company is Km. 28, National Road, Tunasan, Muntintupa City.

Bankruptcy, Receivership or Similar Froceedings

The Company and its associate are not involved in any bankruptoy, receivership or similar
proceedings. ‘

Materiai Reclassification, Merger, Consolidation or Purchase or Sale of a Significant Amount of
Assets {not ordinary) over the past three years

The Company and its associate have not made any material reclassifications nor entered into a
merger, consolidation or purchase or sale of significant amount of assets (not ordinary) in the past

three years.

Business of [ssue

The Company is a licensed bottler of PepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton beverages in the Philippines. It
manufactures a range of carbonated soft drinks and non-carbonated beverages that includes wefl-
known brands Pepsi-Cola, 7Up, Mountain Dew, Mirinda, Gatorade, Tropicana/Twister, Lipton, Sting

and Propel.

Net Sales 2010 2009 2008

Carbonated soft donks R 11,469 B 10,5594 210405
Non-carbonated beverages 4 660 3,638 2,576
Total ' R 16,129 £ 14,232 212 981
| _Seament result® 2010 2009 2008
Carbonated soft drinks B2994 R 3118 R 3,297
Non-carbonated beverages ‘ 1,217 ' 1,071 815
Total 24211 R 4,189 £ 4,107

*  Segment result is the difference between net sales and segmant expenses. Segment expanses are allocated based on
the percentage of each reportable segment's net sales over the total net sales.

Foreign sales

Foreign sales represent (0.289%, 0.26%, and 0.40% of total net sales in 2010, 2008, and 2008
respectively.



c

Distribution methods of the products

The Company’'s sales volumes depend on the reach of its distribution network, [t increases the reach
of digtribution system by adding routes and in¢reasing penetration by adding outlets on existing
routes that currently do not stock its products. It relies on a number of channels to reach retail
outfets, including direct sales distributors and wholesalers.

The backbone of the distribution system is what is referred to as “Entrepreneurial Distribution
System,” which consists of independent contractors who service one or mare sales “routes,” usually
by truck, selling directly to retail outiets and collecting empty returnable bottles (RGBs).

it alzo employs its own sales force, which principally sells to what is referred to as the "modern trade”
channel, consisting largely of supermarkets and restavrant and convenience store chains. Most of
these sales are credit sales that are fulfilled by third party distributors. I addition, it sells products to
third party wholesalers and distributors, which sell them to retail outlets.

An important aspect of the distribution system is the infrastructure-intensive process of selfling and
delivering RGE products to many thousands of small retailers, including sari-sari stores and
carinderias. The efforts w0 increase the reach of our distribution network require significant
investments in distribution infrastructure such as additional trucks, refrigeration equipment,
warehouse space and a larger “float” of glass botles and plastic shells, as well as higher costs for
additional sales and distribution staff.

Fublicly-announced new product
The Company has no publicly-announced new producte that are in the planning or prototype stage.
Competition

The beverage market in the Philippines is highly comnpetitive. Competition is primarity through
advertising and marketing programs that create brand awareness, price and price promotions, new
product development, distribution and availability, packaging and customer goodwill.

Competitors in the carbonated soft drinks (CSD) market are The Coca-Cola Company, Asiawide
Refreshmerits Corporation, and Asia Brewery lncorporated. The substantial investment in multiple
ptants, distribution infrastructure and systems and the fleat of RGBs and plastic shells required to
operate a nationwide beverage business using RGBs represent a significant barrier to potential
competitors in widening their reach.

The market for non-carbonated beverages (NCB) is more fragmented. Major competitors in this
market are The Coca-Cola Company, San Miguel Corporation, Universal Robina Corperation, Zesto
Corporation, among others. In recent years, the market has been relatively fluid, with frequent
product launches and shifting consumer preferences, These trends are expected to continue.

Sources and availability of raw materials

Over half of total costs cornprise purchases of raw materials. Largest purchases are sugar and
beverage concentrates. The Company purchases all sugar requirements comestically because of
import restrictions imposed by the Philippine government. [t purchases bevergge concentrates from
PepsiCo, Inc. ("PepsiCo”) and Pepsi Lipton intermational Limited (*Pepsi Lipton™) at prices that are
fixed as a percentage of the wholesale prices charged for the finished products, subject to a price
floor in U.S. dollars. ‘



Another substantial cost is packaging. The major cormponant
pre-forms, which are converted into PET bottl
cans and closures. It also makes regular purc
Purchases of each of these materials are from sup

Asia, usually under short term, fixed price confracts.

Customers

The Company has a broad customer hase natiohwide.

convenience stores, bars, sari-sari stores and carinderias.

Transactions with and/or Dependence on Related Parties

Please refer to ltem 13 of this report.

Patents, trademarks, copyrights, licenses, franchises, concessions, an

The Company does not own any inteflectual
Exclusive Botling Agreements, the Compan

trademarks owned by PepsiCo, Inc., and, in the case of the Lipton brand
with the Philippine inteflectual Property Office. Certificates

ffactive for a period of 10 years from the registration date
January 1998 are effective for 20 years from the
t of the current Certificates of Registration as well

NV. Trademark licenses are registered

of Registration filed after January 1998 are e
untess sooner cancelled, while those filed before
registration date. The table below summarizes mos
as pending applications for Lipton jced Tea.

es at the plants, non

s of this expense are purchases of PET
-reusable glass bottles, aluminum
hases of RGBS to maintain float at appropriate levels.
pliers based in the Philippines and in other parts of

lts custormers include supermarkets,

d royalty agreements

property that is material to the business. Under the
y is authorized to use brands and the associated
and trademarks, Unilever

5 Filing Date Expiration
Pepsi Max February 7, 1894 June 23, 2020
1996 Pepsi Loge in Color August 26, 1997 April 18, 2021
PCPPI - Pepsi Cola Products August 26, 2008 September 17, 2019
Philippines, Inc. and Logo
Pepsi QOctober 18, 2004 February 19, 2017
Mirinda January 23, 1986 May 10, 2019
Mountain Dew June 5, 2000 January 18, 2014

-1 Mountain Dew Logo June 5, 2000 Qctoher 36, 2014

' Diet 7Up Logo in Golor September 22, 2003 August 28, 2015
7Up February 26, 2007 November 5, 2017
Gatorade November 27, 1992 June 29, 2016
Gatorade and lightning bolt design February 9, 2004 August 28, 2015
Propel | August 23, 2002 January 17, 2015
Tropicana Twister December 6, 1990 August 18, 2013
Tropicana December 14, 1982 January 14, 2020
Sting March 10, 2006 June 18, 2017
Lipton March 28, 2003 June 8§, 2016
Lipton Splagh design December 18, 2003 May 28, 2017

| Lipton lee Tea Logo in Color November 17, 2006 Pending application

‘The Company produces its products under licenses from PepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton and depends
upon them to provide concentrates and access to new products. Thus, if the Exclusive Bottling
Agreements are suspended, terminated or not renewed for any reason, it would have a material
adverse effect on the business and financial results.

Refer to {tem 13 of this report for details on trangactions with PepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton.

Government approvals of principal products



Government approvals of principal products

As a producer of beverages for human consumption, the Company is subject to the regulation by the
Bureau of Food and Drugs (BFAD) of the Philippines, which is the policy formulation and monitoring
arm of the Department of Health of the Philippines on matters pertaining to food and the formulation
of rules, regulations, standards and minimum guidelines on the safety and quality of food and food
products as well as the branding and labeling requirements for these products.

it is the Company's policy to register all locally-produced products for local market distribution. Each
of the plants has a valid and curreni License to Operate as a Food Manufacturer of Non-Alcoholic
Beverages from BFAD. These licenses are renewed annually in accordance with applicable
regulations. Any finding and gaps found during the regulatory audit and inspection are thoroughly
discussed with BFAD inspectors and compliance commitments are re-issued. There are no pending
findings of gaps that are material or that may materially affect the operation cf each plant or all the
plants as a whole.

The Company is also registered as a Distributor and Exporter of finished products. It has been
recognized by BFAD as a Gaod Manufacturmg Practice Certified Plant,

Effect of existing or probable governmental regulations on the business

The Company's production faciliies are subject to environmental regulation under a variety of
national and local laws and regulations, which, in particular, control the emissions of air pollutants,
water, and noise. It is reguiated by two major government agencies, namely, the Depariment of
Environment and Natural Resources (DENR) and the Laguna Lake Development Authority (LLDA).

The Company 5 compliant with environmental laws and regulations, such as the wastewater
treatment plants as required by the Department of Environment and Natural Resources and Laguna
Lake Development Authority.

While the foregoing agencles actively monitor the Company’s compliance with environmental
regulations as well as investigate complaints brought by the public, it is required to police its own
compliance and prevent any incident that could expose the Company to fines, civil or even criminal
sanctions, considerable capital and other costs and expense for refurbishing or upgrading
eavironmental compliance systemn and resources, third party liability such as clean-ups, injury to
communities and individuals, including, loss of life. :

Research and development

The research and development costs amounted to R317 460, £233,293, and B177,500 in fiscal years
2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.

. Costs and effects of mmpliance with environmental faws

Compliance with all applicable environmental laws and reguiations, such as the Ervironmental impact
Statement System, the Pollution Control Law, the Laguna Lake Development Authority Act of 1666,
the Clean Air Act, and the Solid Waste Management Act has not had, and in the Company's opinion,
is not expected to have a material effect on the capital expenditures, earnings or competitive position.
Annually, it invests about B35 million and R33 million in wastewater treatment and air pollution
abatement, respectively, in its facilities.

R |



Emplayass

As of June 30, 2010, the Company employs approximataly 2,560 people. In addition, it generally
deploys between 1,500 and 1,950 casual employees working in the business at any time. It contracts
with DOLE accredited third party manpower and services firms for the supply of casual staff. The
nurnber of casual employees it requires varies seasonally, with generally higher numbers during peak
months of March through June, As of June 30, 2010, it had 1,936 casual employees.

All of the paermanent production employees at the bottling plants and sales offices are represented by
a union. The Company is a parly to 14 collective bargaining agreements, with separate agreements
for the sales and the non-sales forces in some cases. The collective bargaining agreements contain
economic and non-economic provisions (such as salary increase and performance incentive, sale
commission, laundry allowance, per diem, bereavement assistance, union leave, calamity loan, and
assistance o employees' cooperative), which generailly have a term of three years and remain
binding on the successors-in-interest of the parties, while the representation aspect is valid for five
years.

The Company believes that the relationship with both unionized and non-unionized employaes s
healthy. It has not experienced any work stoppages due to industrial disputes since 19499,

It places significant emphasis on training personnel to increase their skilt levels, ensure consistent
application of procedures and to instil an appreciation of corporate values. it operates "Paepsi
University,” a full-time training facility consisting of four clagsrooms. 1t has adopted a compensation
policy which it believes to be competitive with industry standards in the Philippines. 3alaries and
benefitzs are reviewed periodically and adjusted fo retzin current employees and atiract new
employees. Performance is reviewed annually and employees are rewarded based on the attainment
of pre-defined objectives.

The Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering substantially all
of its regular and full time employees. The Company has a Retirement Cornmittee that sets the
policies for the plan and has appointed two Philippine banks as trustees to rmanage the retirement
fund pursuant to the plan.  Annual cost is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Major Risks

Sales and profitability are affected by the overall performance of the Philippine economy, the natural
seasonality of sales, the competitive environment of the beverage market in the Philippines, as well
as changes in cost struciures, among other factors.

Sales volume are also affected by the weather, generally being higher in the hot, dry months from
March through June and lower during the wetter monsoon months of July through October. in
addition, the Philippines is exposed to risk of typhoons during the monsoon period. Typhoons usually
result in substantially reduced sales in the affected area, and have, in the past, interrupted production
at the planis in affected areas. While these factors lead to a natural seasonaiity in sales,
unseasonable weather could also significantly affect sales and profitability compared to previous
comparable periods. Sales during the Christmas/New Year holiday period in late Decamber tend to
be higher as well. '

The CSD and NCB miarkets are bath highly competitive. The actions of competitors as well as the
Company's own continuous efforts on pricing, marketing, promotions, and new product development
affect sales, Some of the smaller competitors have lower cost bases than the Corporation and price
their products lower than ours,  Thus, in addition to the cost of producing and distibuting our
beverages, sales prices are greatly affected by the avaifability and price of competing brands in the
market. «



All of the Company’s sales are denominated in Philippine peses. However, some of the significant
costs, such as purchases of packaging materials, are denominated in United States doliars. Some of

The business requires a significant supply of raw rnaterizls and energy. The cost and supply of these
materials could be adversely affected by changes in the world market prices on sugar, crude oil
aluminum, tin, PET resing, among others. Aithough direct purchases of fuel are relatively small as a
proportion of total costs, the Cormpany is exposed to fluctuations in the price of oil through the
dependence on freight and delivery services. Changes in materials prices generally affect the
competitors as well,

Margins differ between beverage products and package types and sizes. Exciuding packaging,
production costs are similar across the range of carhonated beverages. but vary between non.
carbonated beverages, Packaging costs vary, with RGBs being less expensive than PET, aluminum
Cans or non-returnable glass. The incremental cost of producing larger-sized serves in the samme
package type is proportionately lower than the increased volume, creating opportunities to achieve
higher margins where customers perceive value in terms of volumne. '

As a result of the factors discussed above, the fnargins the Company earns on the products can be
substantially different, and the margins can change in both absolute and refative terms from period to
period. While the Company attempts to adjust its product and package mix to maximize profitability,
changes In consumer demand and the competitive landscape can have a significant impact on mix
and therefore profitability. ‘

The Company is also subject to credit risk, liquidity risk and various market risks, including risks from
changes in commodity prices, inferest rates and currency exchange rates (refer to Notes 4 and 23 of
the 2010 Audited Financial Statements for discussion on Financial Risk Management).

The Company i not aware of any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that
is material to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation. Ta the Company's
knowledge, there are'no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangement, obligations (including

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Az a foreign-owned company, the Company is not permitted to own fand in the Philippines and has no
intention to acquire real estate property. Hence, it leases the land on which the bottling plants,
warehouses and sales offices are located,

The Company l=ases cartain parcels of land where its bottling piants and warehouses are located from
third parties and Nadeco Realty Corporation for a period of one to 25 years and are renewable for
ancther ane to 25 years (refer to Note 27 of the 2010 Audited Financial Staternents for further information
on the leases).

Other than the buildings, leasehold improvements, machinery and equipment, fixtures and appurtenances
disclosed in Note 10 to the 2010 Audited Finzncial Statements, and the investments in shares of stocks
disclosed in Note 8 to the 2010 Audited Financial Statements, the Comparny does not hold significant
properties.



Refer to Notes 7 (Inventories), 9 (Bottles and Cases), 10 (Property, Plant and Equipment), and 11 (Notes
Payables) to the 2010 Audited Financial Statements for details on mortgage, lien or encumbrances over
the properties of the Company and its associate. ‘

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time the Company becomes a party to itigation in the ordinary course of its business. The
majority of the cases it which the Company is a party are cases it files to recaver debts in relation to
unpaid receivables by frade parners or in relation to cash or route shortages, private criminal
prosecutions that it brings (generatly for low value offenses such as theft of product or  distribution
equipment, fraud, and bouncing checks), fabor cases for aileged fllegal dismissal (which are usually
accompanied by demands for reinstaternent in the Company without loss of seniority rights, and payment
of back wages), and consumer cases brought against the Company involving allegations of defective

products.

As z result of @ promotion in 1992, civil cases were filed against the Company in which thousands of
individuals claimed to hold numbered bottle crowns that entitled them to a cash prize. The Philippine
Supreme Court has consistently held in at teast 7 final and executory decigions in the last 5 years that the
Company is not liable to pay the amounts claimed. In the most recent of these decisions, the Supreme
Court dismissed a similar claim, reiterating that it is bound by its pronouncement in a number of cases
involving this promotion. By virtue of the precedential effect of the decided cases, the Company expects
the remaining cases to be dismissed in due coyurse.

The Company does not believe that the litigation in which the Cornpany is currently involved or which is
presently pending or threatened is material, either individually or in the aggregate. The Company has not
been involved in any bankruptcy, receivership or other similar proceadings.
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
There was no matter submitted during the 4™ quarter of the fiscal year covered by this report to & vote of
security hoiders, through solicitation of proxies or otherwise,

PART Il - DPERA'TIDNAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR ISSUER’'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
Market Information

The cornmon shares were listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange ("PSE"y on February 1, 2008. The
high and low sales prices of such shares for 2010 and 2009 are set out below,

| Petiod High Low
July to Sept 2008 P2.46 EB1.,96
Qct to December 2008 £2.00 R0.64
Jan to March 2009 R0.99 P0.84
April to June 20609 R1.50 R0.80
July to Sept 2009 B2 45 P1.32
Oct to December 2008 , B2.50 B2 00
Jan to March 2010 : £2.70 B2.02

Aprit1o June 2010 E3.05 B2 46

The closing share price as of September 1, 2010 was P2.77

e



Stockholders

The Company has approximateiy 657 holders of common shares [with the PCD Nominee Corporation
, 2010 based on the number of

(Filipino) and (Non-Filipino) considered as two holders] as of June 30
accounts registered with the Stock Transfor Agent.

The following are the top 20 holders of common shares based on the report furnished by the Stock

Transfer Agent as of June 30, 2010.

[ Number of Percentage of
NO. Name Shares Held DWnersiip
1 PCD NOMINEE CORFP (NON-FILIPINQ) 1,574,666,857 42.63%
2 QUAKER GLOBAL INVESTMENTS BV, 1,089,101,358 29.48%4’
3 [ PCD NOMINEE CORP. (FILIPINO) 832,907,816 25.26%
4 | ORION LAND INC, 70,000,000 1.80%
5 | YONG MICKY ' 20,000,001 0.54%
6 | BORROMEO, JOSEPH MARTIN H. 450,000 0.01%
7 M. J. SORIAND TRADING INC. 450,000 0.01%
B | YAN, LUCIO W, 300,000 0.01% |
9 MADARANG, WINEFREDA O. 250,000 0.01%
12 | LUGTI, VALERIANO A 220,000 0.01%
10 |1 DABAQ, LUIS . 200,000 0.01%
11 | BLANCAVER, RENE B. 182,000 0.00%
13 | YU, FEUIX 8, 148,998 0.00%
14 | MERCHAN BEERNARDO 140,000 0.00%
15 | SORIANO, VICTOR MARTIN J. 130,000 0.00%
16 | IGNACIO, JUANITO R. 100,000 0.00%
17 | NARCISO, MA CELESTE S 100,000 0.00%
18 | PINEDA, MA. CORAZON V. 100,000 0.00%
18 | UMALY, JOSE I 100,000 0.00%
20 | PINEDA, YZRAEL EDWIN DE VERA 88,000 0.00% |

Cash Dividends ‘
The Board of Directors {BOD) approved several deciarations of cash dividends arnounting to B554 million
in fiscal year 2010, R369 million in fiscal year 2008 and 400 million in fiscal year 2007. There were no
cash dividends declarations in fiscat year 2008. Details of the declarations are as follows:

Payable to
Dividend Per Stockholders of
Date of Declaration Share Record as of Date of Payment
June 21, 2007 R0 12 June 21, 2007 August 20, 2007
September 30, 2008 0.10 October 15, 2008 Novembar 7, 2008
September 30, 2009 015 October 15, 2009 October 29, 2005

Dividend Policy ‘
The Company has a dividend policy to dectare dividends to stockholders of record, which are paid from

taking into zccount the earnings, cash flow, financial position, capital and operating progress, and other
factors as the BOD may eonsider rolevant. Subject to the foregoing, the present policy is to pay cash
dividends up to 50% of annual net incorme, Thig policy may be subject to future revisions.



Cash dividends are subject to approval by the BOD without need for stockholders’ approval. Stock
dividends require the further approval of the stockholders representing no less than 2/3 of our outstanding
capital stock.

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities including Recent Issuance of Securities
Constituting an Exempt Transaction '

There has been no recent sale of unregistered or exempt securities including recent issuance of
securities constituting an exempt transaction. -

PART Il - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 6. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - fiscal 2010 versus 2009

The Company delivered a strong, milestone year in terms of top-line sales. It continued its focus on
driving the growing NCB market and maintaining CSD share through continuing the strategic agenda to
drive affordability and availability across the Philippines. Net sales increased by 13.3% from 2009 and
have nearly doubled from five years ago, an impressive feat given the aggressive competition and
marketplace challenges. '

The sales surge was led by NCBs, posting an impressive 28% in revenue growth. With this development,
NCB share in the revenue mix grew from 26% ta 29%, which is in line with the strategy to fully embrace
the heaith and wellness trend. CSDs alze presented a strong 8% in revenue growth, surpassing the fast 7
years growth in this market. The strong CSD sales were buayed by the national elections and the hot
weather.

The impressive sales numbers however were tempered by rising sugar prices, which increased by 22%.
In 2009, sugar prices rose to a 35-year high as rain damaged crops in Brazil, the largest producer, and
dry weather curbed output in India, the second-largest supplier. As supply slowed and demand continued
to rise, the inventory resarves of many countries, including the Philippines, became depleted resulting to
higher sugar prices and significantly affecting sugar-dependent food ang beverage industries.

Despite this acute development, gross profit remained steady at P4.21 billion compared to |ast years
gross profit of P4.19 billion, while operating income slipped to P96 million compared to last yaar's figure
of P1.1 billion. EBITDA likewise remained steady at P2.2 pillien versus year ago figlre of P2.2 pillion,
while EBIT dropped to P1.04 bijlion VErsus year ago figure of P1.2 billion, weighed down by higher
depreciation and amortization resulting from recent expansion programs.

Management was able to mitigate the rise in sugar prices in part by continuing to successfully control ang
reduce operating expenses from 24% and 21% of sales in 2008 and 2009, respactively, to 20% in 2010.
Notable reductions are in the area of selling and distribution expenses (from 13% of sales in 2008 to 12%
in 2010) where management's ratienalization and re-engineering programs have managed to deliver
Superior service at much lower cost,

Marketing expenses as a percentage of sales were likewise lower (from 4% of sales in 2009 to 3% of
sales in 2010). Focused marketing anchored on strategically targeted programs resulted in sales
increases armidst modest marketing spending. General administrative expenses remained steady at 4%
of sales in 2010 and 2009, showing a firm-wide effort to manage the controllable variables in the income
statement. The Company’s continued efforts to drive top-line grawth, while maintaining tight cost control
will be the sustaining force in the years to come.



RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - fiscal 2009 versus 2008

Fiscal year 2009 registered a healthy 5% growth in net income and 19% growth in operating income over
year ago leve!, It maintained profitabiiity, with EBITDA-margin of 16%, EBIT margin of 8%, and Net
Income margin of 6%. The corresponding numbers for fiscal year 2008 are 16%, 8% and 6%,
respectivealy,

Net sales growth of 9.6% is driven mainly by growth in NCB brands such as Sting, Tropicana and
Gatorade as well as CSD growth in flavors.

In line with its strategy of aggressively tapping the healthy growth prospects for NCB, with health and
weallness as its platform and growing the business by targeting the broad CD mass market that stili
constitutes the majority of the Philippine population, the Company continues to expand its offering of
beverage products to make NCB available to muore Filipinos at affordable prices and convenient
packaging. The Company has since completed the expansion projacts in Cebu, San Fernando and lloio
which made it possible to offer its NCB products in 8oz returable glass bottles (RGB) all over the
country.

among other things in order to create buzz and bring excitement to the consumers as well as use
packaging to communicate and have 3 dialogue with consumears. It also taunched the highly successful
Mountain Dew 750 mi RB to leverage the brand’s strong pull in the trade.

The intensified competition from a crowded CSD market along with the challenge posed by low-priced
brand compelied the Company to drop its prices. . To counteract the adverse effect of a low price,
commioditized cola segment on its profitability, the Company continues to maintain a healthy revenus mix
resulting to a 3% higher average LRB prices.

The weak economy, high inflation and stiff competition caused undue pressure on revenyes and coats.
Gross profit margin dropped from 31.6% in 2002 to 29.4% in 2009 due to increased cost of inputs such as
sugar, CO2, packaging materials, fuel, et during the 1% half of the fiscal year as well as depressed CSD
pricing brought about by intense competition. In spite of lower gross profit margin and higher
manufacturing depreciation, gross profit grew by 1.9% due to volurne growth,

On the other hand, operating income grew by 18.8% ang operating income margin registered an
improvement from 7.4% in 2008 to 8.0% in 2008 due to effective cost management. However, an
increase in effective tax rate from 24.0% in 2008 to 32.3% in 2009 caused the net income margin to drop
frorn 5.9% fo0 5.6%. ‘

Operating expenses as a ratio to net sales decreased from 24.2% to 21.4% mainly due to decrease in
marketing expenses by 21.7%. The decrease in marketing expenses as a percentage of net sales
dropped from 5.1% to 3.7% and is due to targeted and prudent marketing spending program initiated by
tnanagement in 2008,

As a percentage of net sales, selling and distribution (S8D) expenses decreased from 14.1% to 13.4%.
In terms of absolute amount, S&D expenses increased by 4% as compared to a year ago level. The
increase can be attributaa mainly to volume dgrowth as well as the Company’s continued investment in its
distribution infrastructure such as RGBs, plastic cases and in-store refrigeration equipment. These
increases in S&D cost were offset by the savings on personnel, rental and utilities as a result of the
rationalization of the number of its sales office as well as the effect of change in the estimated useful |ife
of its marketing equipment from 5 years to 7 years.

General & administrative expenses decreased by 6% vs. yedr ago level. General and administrative
expenses decreased from 5.0% to 4.3% of net sajes. Significant cost savings were realized due fo
prudent cost management,



FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LiQUIDITY

For the fiscal year 2010 the Company has strong operating cash flows, ie net cash provided by
operating activities are substantially more than the net cash used in investing activities.

response to market demands, in meeting capital expenditures through interraily generated funds and in
providing the Company with a strong financial condition that gives it ready access to financing alternatives
(refer to Note 4 to the 2010 Audited Financial Statements for detailed discussion on the Company's
revolving credit facilities as of June 30, 2010).

Credit sales over the past three years have changed from 62% of total sales in 2008 and 68% in 2005 to
64% in 2010. This reflects 2 snift from & direct distribution mode 10 @ more efficiant model of fostering
partnership with distributors and multi-route Entrepreneurial Distribution System contractors as well as

- Increase in Modern Trade business. Liquidity has remained heaithy, Collection period improved from 30
days in 2008 and 27 days in 2009 to just 26 days in 2010 inventory days have decreased from 12 days
in 2008 and 10 days in 2009 to just 8 days in 2010, reflecting & more efficient inventory and production
management. Trade payable days have remained at manageable levels.

Non-current assets decreased from B6,269 million as of June 2009 to R6,208 million as of June 2010 dye
to the decreased amount of Bottles and Cases {net of amortization) by 116 million as well as decrease
in Other Non-Current assets by 235 million. These decreases were partialty offset by the increase in
Plant, Property & Equipment by 288 million as well as by the increase in Investments in Associates by g2
million. The increase in Plant, Property & Equiprnent, on the other hand, is largely due tc the continued
expansion of plant capacity,

Increase in eyrrent liabilities from B2 275 million as of June 2008 to 82,472 miilion as of June 2010 is
mainly due to increase in Accounts Payable & Acciued Expenses by 2344 million. The increase in
Accounts Payable & Accryed Expensas is partially offset by the decreased amounts from Income Tayx
Payable by P98 million and Notes Payable by B50 million_

Non-Current Liabilities increased from RS77 million as of Junie 2009 to R599 milllon as of June 2010 due

to the increase in Deferred Tax Liabilities by 816 million and increase in Other Non-Current Liabilities by
P& rniliion, ‘

in current Hapilities. Total eguity increased from E5,710 million to R5,804 million on account of net
income of B738 mitlion for the year less dividends of 2554 million paid during the year.

MATERIAL COMMITMENTS FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES



business. As of June 2010, the IPO proceeds were fully utilized, The Company has completed the
expansion projects of Cebu, San Femnando and liilo. Capital expenditure for fiscal year 2010 amopunted
to P1.127 billion,

FACTORS THAT MAY IMPACT COMPANY'S OPERATIONS / SEASONALITY ASPECTS
Refer to Item 1 (2) (o) on discussion of Major Rigks.

SIGINFICANT ELEMENTS OF INCOME OR LOSS THAT DID NOT ARISE FROM CONTINUING

OPERATIONS
There was no income or lossesg arising from discontinued operations.

ITEM 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Please see Exhibit I hereof for the 2010 Audited Financial Statements.

ITEM 8. INFORMATIOQIN ON INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT

The Company has engaged the services of an independent Certified Public Accountant {CPA) te conduct
an audit and provide objective assurance on the reasonableness of the financial statements and relevant
disclosures. The independent CPA is responsible solely to the Board of Directors.

The appointment of the independent CPA is subrmitted to the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors and
shargholders for approval. The representatives of the independent CPA are expected to be present
during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting and have the opportunity to make a statement on the
Company’s financial statements and results of operations, as required or appropriate, They are also
available to reply to queries during the said meeting. Upon request, the independent CPA can also ba
asked to attend meetings. of the Audit Commitiee and the Board, to make presentations and reply to
inquiries on matters relating to the Company’s financial statements.

The Company has appointed Manabat Sanagustin & Co. as its independent CPA for the fisea) year 2010.
Aside from audit services, it has also engaged Manabat Sanagustin & Co. to perform tax assurance
services and render opinion on projacts relating to the interpretation of tax laws, regulations and rulfings.

FY 2010 FY 2009 FY 2008
Statutory audit fees £ 3.68 million £ 3.50 million £ 3.40 milfion
IPQ-related audit fees - - 15,70 million
Tax advice feeg - 0.33 million 0.25 million
Total £ 3.65 million B 3.83 millicn £ 19.35 million

The Audit Committee of the Company reviews and approves the audit plan and scope of work for the

above setvices and ensures that the rates are competitive a8 compared to the fees charged by other
equally competent external auditors performing similar services. :



ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

PART Ili - CONTROL AND GOMPENSATION INFORMATION
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Term of office '

Directors elected during the annual meeting of the stockholders will hold office for one year until their
Successors are duly elected and qualified, except in case of death, resignation, disqualification or removal
from office. Directors who were elected to il any vacancy hold office only for the unexpired term of their
predecessors.

Directors
The following are the narmes, ages, citizenship and year position was assumed, of our incumbent
directars, including independent directors: ‘ ‘

. . Year Position
Name Age Citizenship was Assumed
Micky Yong 63 Singaporean 1997
sunil D'Souza 42 Indian 2009
James Eng, Jr. 68 American 2005
Tsang Cho Tai (Alfan Tsang) . B0 British 2005
John L. Sigalos ” 43 American 2009
Umran Beba 45 Turkish 2010
Qasim Khan 03 Pakistani 2008 3
Jose M. Periguet, Jr. 64 Filiping 2007
Rafael M. Alunan lil* 62 Filipingo 2007
Oscar 8. Reyes* 64 Filipino 2007 ]
indepandent Diractar



Executive Officers
The following are the names, ages, positions, citizenship and year position was assumed, of our
incumbent executive officers: :

i, . . Yeaar Position
’_ Name Age | Citizenship Position was Assumed
. . Chairman, President and 2002
Micky Yong 83 | Singaporean Chief Executive Officer
Executive Vice-President and 2010
Chief Operating Officer for
Partha Chakrabarti 48 Indian Finance, Treasury,

HR/EIRC/Legal, Manufacturing,
and Logistics

Executive Vice-President/ Chief | 2010
Fefix 8. Yu &1 Fiipino Operating Officer for National
| Sales Operations
. Senior Vice-President and Chief 2010
Akash Shah 28 Canadian Financial Officer ‘
. Senior Vice-President. 2008
Roberto H, Goce 56 Filipino Corporate Services Gr oup
. . - Seniar Vice-President for 19498
D"?‘"'*"' D. Gregorio, Jr. °8 Filipine Manufacturing and Logistics
Ma. Rosario C.2. Nava | 41 Filipino Corporate Secretary and 2007

Compliance Officer

Background Information and Business Experience
Directors;

Micky Yone :

Mr. Yong has held the office of Chief Execyftive Officer of the Corporation since 2002, but he has been a
director of the Corporation since the Guoco Group Limited and its subsidiaries (“Guoco Group™) acquired
its interest in the Corporation in 1997. Since 1989, Mr. Yong has served as President of Guoco Assets
(Philippines), Inc., the Guoco Group's principal investment vehicle in the Philippines. Mr. Yong was the
courtry manager and director of Dag Heng Bank Philippines and a director of First Lepanto. Taisho
Insurance, Tutuban Properties Inc., Guoco Securities Philippines and several other corporations under
the Guoco Group, Mr. Yong hoids a Bachelor of Business Administration degres from the University of
Singapore.

SuNi. D Souza

Mr. 'Souza is Country Manager for the Philippines of PepsiCo, He has been with PepsiCo for the past 8
years and held the position of Sales Director for the Fhilippines prior to his current appointrment, He holds
a Bachelor of Engineering degree from the Pondicherry Engineering College, Pondicherry (University of
Madras) and @ management degree from the Indian Institute of Management in Calcutta.

" JAMES ENG, JR.

Mr. Eng has been ar Executive Director of the Guoco Group Limited since 2001, He is responsible for
graup staff support functions for the Guoce Group. Before he joined the Guoco Group in 1894, Mr. Eng
previously worked with Hiram Walker, a division of Allied-Lyons. Postings included New York, Miami,
London, Heng Kong and Windsor Canada. During his time with Brout, Issacs & Co., Certified Public
Accountants, in New York City, he was responsible for the Managernent Services Division and was a
Management Consultant in New *York for Computer Methods Corporation. He holds a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree from the University of North Carolina. ,
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TSANG CHO TAI (ALLAN TSANG) .

Mr, Tsang is the Chief Financial Officar of the Guoco Group Limited. He is & fellow member of the Heng
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, as
well as an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Tsang
was an associate of an infernational firm of accountants before joining the Guogo Graup in 1989,

JOHN L. S1GaLos

Mr. Sigales is currently PepsiCo’s Chief Financial Officer for the Asia-Pacific region. He has occupied a
variety of positions in PepsiCo for the past 12 years, including being Chief Financial Officer of PepsiCo
Thaitand and Vice-President for Non-Carbonated Beverages in PepsiCo's China business unit. He holds
an MBA from the Wharton Schoal, University of Pennsylvania with dual major in Finance and Strategic
Management and a Bachelor of Arts degree in East Asian studies (Cum laude) from Yaie University.

UMRAN BEBA

Ms. Beba is currently PepsiCo’s President for the Asia-Pacific region. She started her journey with
PepsiCo in 1994 in the position of Commercial Director of Frito Lay in Istanbul, Turkey. Since then, she
has occupted various senior management positions across South Eastern Europe. Ms, Beba holds an
MBA and Bachelor of Science in Industrial Engineering both from the Bogazici University in Istanbul,
Turkey.

QASIM KHAN

Mr. Khan has been connected with PepsiCo for the last 21 years and has occupied various executive and
managerial roles in different regional offices of PepsiCo. He is currently the General Manager of
PepsiCo’s North Asia Pakistan Philippines Business Unit, Prior to joining PepsiCo, he worked for Procter
& Gamble. He holds an MBA and Marketing degrees (with honors) from Michigan State University.

Jose M. PERIQUET, JR. ‘
Mr. Periquet is the President and the Chief Executive Officer of the Metropolitan Insurance Company,
Inc., a position he has held since 1999 up to the present. He has been employed by Metropalitan
insurance since 1985, when he joined as Acting President and Manager, He joined AIG in New York in
1857 and was later assigned to AlU (Phifippines), In¢. where he held the position of Senior Vice-President
and Director. Mr. Periquet is also a director of MIC Heldings, Inc., Bradstock Insurance Brokers Inc. and
the Athenaeum Condominium Corporation. Mr. Periquet hoids a Bachelor's degree in Economics from
Ateneo de Manila University and a Master's degree in Economics from Fordham University.

RarAEL M. ALunan 1l

Mr. Alunan has had extensive experience in the private and public sectors. He is currently the President
of Lopez Group Foundation Inc., a member of its Board and Boards of Lopez Group-related foundations.
He also sits on the Boards of Sun Life of Canada (Philippines), Inc., Sun Life Financial Plans, inc. and
Sun Life Asset Management Company; and sits on various Board committees. Mr. Alunan is also on the
Boards of the Asian Institute of Management and the University of 1. La Salle. He is a reguiar columnist
of Business World. Mr. Alunan obtained his double degree in Business Administration and History-
Political Science from the De La Salle University, attended the Master's in Business Administration-Senior
Executive Program, of the Ateneo de Manila University; and obtained a Masters degree in Public
Administration from Harvard University, John F. Kennedy School of Government.

OsCAR 5. REYES .

Mr. Reyes was Country Chairman and President of Pilipinas Shefl Petroleurn Corporation for many years.
He holds a Bacheior of Arts in Economics (cum laude) from Ateneo de Manila University and participated
in the Program for Management Development at the Harvard Business School. He is currently the Senior
Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer, and Director of the Manila Electric Company. He also
serves as a director and a member of board committees in the boards of companies engaged in banking,
msurance, telecommunications, water distribution, real estate, shipping and mining,



=xecufive Officers: S g

PARTHA CHAKRABARTI . . ‘ T
Mr.'Chakrabarti has been employed by PepsiGo since 1894 and he remains a PepsiCo employee while
holding his current position in PCPPI under a formal secondment agreement. He is currently PCPP's
Executive Vice-President/Chief Operating Officer for Finance, Treasury, HR/EIRC/Legal, Manufacturing,
and Logistics. Mr. Chakrabarti began his career with PepsiCo India, where he held a number of positions
before moving to Vietnam as Chief Financial Officer of PepsiCo's business there. - Before joining’
PepsiCo, he worked for IC! India. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Commerge‘from the
University of Calcutta and an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India. ' -

Feux 8. Yu

Mr. Yu is the Executive Vice-President/Chief Operating Officer for Nationa! Sales Operations of PCPP,
He joined the predecessor of PCPPI in 1983 and has served in various roles in sales and plant
management. Prior to joining PCPPI, he worked for the CFC-URC Group of Companies and before that,
Nestle Philippines. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from De La Saile

University. ‘

AKASH SHAH ‘ . ' ‘ .o :
Mr. Shah is currently the Senior Vice-Prasident and Chief Financial Officer of PCPPI under g secondment
cgreement from PepsiCo of which he remains an employee. He has been with PepsiCo since 2003 and
has held various Finance positions in the Asia-Pacific Region, including China, Thaitand, and across
South East Asia. Prior to joining PepsiCo, he worked for AT, Kearney, inc in North America. He holds an
MBA from INSEAD and a Bachelor of Commerce degree from Queen's University in Canada.

ROBERTO H. GocE ‘ .
Mi. Goce's background is in sales and logistics. Prior to joining PCPPI in 1997, he worked for San Miguel
. Corporation and before that, he held various positions in grains and fertilizer industries. His experience

DANIEL D. GREGORIQ, JR. : ‘

Mr. Gregorio began his career as a systems analyst for Coca-Cola Bottling Philippines, Inc. and rose to
the position of Chief Accountant. In 1987 he moved to Indonesia as Country General Manager for Coca-
Cola Amatil, the owner of the iocal “oca-Cola bottler. He hoids a Bachelor &f Science degree in
industrial Engineering. . ‘ - '

Ma. ROsARIO C.Z. Nava _ ‘

Ms. Nava is a practicing lawyer and & member of the Integrated Bar of the Philippines since 1995, She
has been a director and the Corporate secretary of Solectron Philippines, {ne. since 2005 and has bean
the Corporate Secretary of CPAC Monier Philippines, Inc. since 2004 and is also currently 2 director
thereof.. She was also a Director of Hewlett-Packard Philippines Cortp. from 2001 to 2002, and re-siectad
in 2004 up to 2007, and was its Corporate Secretary from 2006 to 2007. She holds a Bachslor of
Science degree in Lega! Management with honors from Ateneo de Manila University and a Juris Doctor
degree from the Ateneo de Manila Law School, .

Resignation of Directors- - :
No Director has resigned or declinad to stand for re-election to the Roard of Directors since the date of

the last Annual Stockholders' Meeting due to any disagreement on any matter relating to our operations,
policies or practices, ' ‘
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Significant Employees and Family Relationships -

No single person is expected to make a significant cont.ibution to the business since the Company
considers the collective efforts of all the employees as instrumental to the overall success of the
business. The Company is not aware of any family relationship between of among the aforemantioned
Directars or Executive Officers up to the fourth eivil degrae.

Except for the payment of annual directors’ fee and per diem aliowarce, the Company has not had any
fransaction during the last two (2).years in which any Director or Exacutive Officer had a direct or indirect ©
interest. : oo ‘

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

None of the aforementioned Directors or Executive Officers is or has been involved i any criminal or
bankruptcy proceeding, or is or has been subject 0 any judgment of a competent court barring or
otherwise limiting his involvement in any type of business, or has been found to have violated any
securities laws during the past 5 years and up to the latest date, ‘ '

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

The aggregate compensation paid in the fiscal years 2010, 2009, 2008, and 2007 to the following

Executive Officers is set out in the table below: : |

‘ 1. Micky Yong — Chairman, President & Chief Executive Officer

2. Felix 8. Yu — Executive Vice-President & Chief QOperating Officer for National Sales Operations

3. Partha Chakrabarti — Execytive Vice-President & Chief Operating Officer for Finance, Treasury,
Human Resources/EIRC/Legal, Manufacturing and Logistics

4. Akash Shah — Senior Vice-President & Chief F inancial Officer

5. Daniel D. Gregorio, Jr..— Senior Vice-President for Manufacturing & Logistics

6. Roberto H. Goce — Senior Vice-President, Corporate Services Group

[— Name Position Year [  Basic Bonus Others
L | compensation '
Aggregate for above- - | 2007 | B42 300,000 | R1g, 300,000 -

named officers \ ‘ 2008 43,708,000 22,066,000 -
‘ - 2009 40,716,000 11,618,000 -
2010 43,739 000 20,444,000

Al other directors and . ) 2007 - - -

officers as a group ‘ 2008 - . - 21,336 765*

unnarmed 2009 - - 3,352 g41*
| - 2010 . 2535000

* This relates to per diem allowances and annual directors fee paid to the direciars.

There are no special empioyment contracts between the Company and the above Executive Officers.”
Non-executive Directors are entitled o a per diem allowance of U351,000 for each attendance in the -
Corporation’s Board meetings and commiitiee fneetings, except for Aucit Committee meetings where the
per diem allowance is US$2,000. In addition, each Director are entitled to récaive an annuaf directors’
fee in the amount of R500,000. Seven of the Directors representing the Guoco Group and Quatar Globai
Investments B. V. have waived the per diem aliowance as well as the annual directors' fae.

There are no outstanding warrants or options held by the above Executive Officers and all such officers
and Directors as a group. ‘
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP
Security Ownership of Record an

OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
d Beneficial Owners of at Least 6% of Our Securities as of :June

30, 2010.
Name of
: Beneficlal
Title of Name and Address of Record Owner and Owner and - . Nurnber of Shares
Class Relationship with lssuer . relationship Citizenship Heid Percentage
with record
‘ . ownher
PCQ:.P Nominee Corporation (Non-Filipino}’
Common | 37" Floor, The Enterprise Center Please refar to e o
sharas Ayata Avenue, Makati City footnote Non-Filipino 1,574,665,857 42.6303%
Retationship — please refer to fostnate ‘
Quaker Global Investments BV~ Sams as
Common Nofhevaan 38, 3542 Eb Utrestt Tha indicated in Dutch 1,089,101,358 29.4848%
Refatlonship — stockholder column 2 ‘
Hong Way Holdings, Inc”
1 Same as . . ‘
C;:gzzn 322 g';’:ré%”;%:g%f;:ﬁ:riﬁ: ;’:"gw indicated in Singaperaan 857,768,626 23.2226%
Relationship Stockhoider Galurmn 2
PC'P Nominee Corporation (Filipino)”
Common | 37" Floer, The Enterprise Center Flaasa rafar to - "
shares Ayala Avenue, Makati City footnate Filipino 932,907,916 23.2562%
Relatioaship ~ please refer to footnote
Guoco Assets (Philippines), Inc.” Same as _
Csohr;rn;gn ggz ;F:r? réﬁuéizggYAﬁzﬁzaﬁa;;?i’gity fndi;:ated in Singaporean 285 594 962 8.9196%
. ! calumn 2

Relationship - Stockholder - -

' PCD Nominee Corporation is the re
Depository, Ine. (PCD),

a private company organized to implement an aut
transactions in the Philippines. While PCD Nominee Corporation is the re
books, the beneficial ownarship of such s
whether individuals or corporations,

hares pertains w PCD participants (
in whose names these shares are record

eistered owner of shares beneficially owned by participants in the Philippine Centra)
omated book entry system of handling secutities
gistered owner of the shares in the Corporation’s
brokers) and/or their non-Filipine clients,
ed in their respective books. Under PCD

procedures, when an issuer of a PCD-eligible issue will hold 2 stockholders® meeting, PCD will execute a pro-forma proxy

in favor of the participants for the to

* Quaker Global Investrents B.V.
the Metherlards with principal o
Directors, will designate Mr. Sun

* Hong Way Holdings, Tne. (“HWHI™ 5 a co
of the Philippines with offices at the 30™
City. HWHI, through its Board of Direct
Cotporation.

4

* Guoco Assets (Philippines), Inc. (“GAPI”) is a corporation duly organized an
laws of the Philippines with principal office at the 30%
Avenue, Makati City. GAPI through its Board of Directo

Same as footmote 2 above except that the beneficial ownershi
Corporation pertains to PCD participants {brokers)
whose names these shares are recorded in their respe

- of stock in the Corparation,

tal number of shares in thejr respective principal
total number of shares in their client securities account. For shares held in the princi
is appointed as proxy witn full voting rights and powers as tegistered owner of such
securities account, the participant is appointad as proxy with the obligation to const
with full voting end other rights for the number of shares beneficially owned by them.

securities account, as well as for the
pal securities account, the participant
shares. For shares held in the client
tute a sub-proxy in faver of its chents

(“QGI™) is a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of
flice at Zonnebaan 35, 3542 EB Utrecht, The Netherlands. QGI, tirough its Board of
il D*Souza to vote its shares of stock in the Corporation. '
rporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws
tloor, Burgundy Corporate Tower, 252 Sen. (il Puyat Avenue, Makati
ors, usually designates Mr, Micky Yong to vote its shares of stock in the

p of shares registered in the name of PCD Nominee
and/or their Filipino cliests. whether individua
ctive bogks.

Is ot corporations, in

d existing under and by virtue of the
Fioor, Burgundy Corporate Tower, 252 Sen. Gil Puyat
rs, usually designates Mr. Micky Yong to vote its shares
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Security Ownership of Management as of June : 0, 2010

* Each of the directors is the registered ownar of at least one qualifying share,
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Téﬁfﬁgf Name and Address of Owner ;:g::#;zfngg;:} . Citizenship Peé?:g; of
Micky Yong 20,000,004- sirect
C;hr;:g:n (C:ﬂ?é;néigc?mr: oBgﬁ?:g President and Dwnership except for Singaporean 0.5415%
c/o K. 23 Natlohal Road, Barangay Tunasan, Murntinlupa Gity one gualifying share
Sunil I¥ Souza
‘?"“""“"“ Non-Executive Diractar 1* Indian Nit
shares ¢/o 21% Floor, LKG Tower, 6801 Ayala Avenus, Makati City
James Eng, Jr.
Comman Non-Executive Director . C .
shares - | /o 50" Floor, The Center, 1 AITIEI'iCEI:'I Nii
99 Queen’s Road, Central, Hong Keong
Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang) .
Comman | Non-Executive Director . - .
thares c/o 50" Floor, The Center, 1 British Nil
29 Quesn's Road, Central, Hong Kong
John L. Sigalos
Cammon Non-Exenutive Director . ) ‘ )
shares | c/o 20 Flgor Caroline Canter 1 American il
28 Yun Ping Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Umran Beba
Commeon MNon-Executive Director N . .
shares | c/o 20" Floor Caroline Center 1 Turkish Nil
28 Yun Ping Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Qasim Khan
Commaen | Non-Executive Director . L .
shares clo 20" Fisor Caraling Centar 1 Pakistani Nil
28 Yun Ping Road, Causaway Bay, Hong Kong
Jose M. Periquet, .Jr
Comman | Non-Executive Diractor 4 Filinino Nil
shares /o 3" Floor, Athenasum Building, 160 LP. Leviste Street, P
. Salcedo Vlllage Makati City
Rafael M. Alunan il
Comrmen Indepandeant Diractor 1+ Filioing Nil
sharss c/o 5" Floor, Benpres Building, Exchange Road comer Meralco P
‘ Avenua, Ortigas Center, Pasig City
Oscar 5, Reyes
Comrmon Independent Director 4* Filivino Nil
shares /o Unit 2504 Corporate Genter, 139 Valero Street, Salcedo P
Village, Makati City
Partha Chakrabartf 7]
Common Executive Vice-Prasident and N
shares Chief Operating Officer for Finance, Treasury, HR/EIRC/Legal, 4] Indian * 0%
Manufacturing and Logistics '
S/o km. 29 MNational Road, Barangay Tunasan, Muntiniupa ity
' Felix 5. Yu
Cotnman | Executive Viee-President and Chief Operating Officer for 349,998 - diract S
shares Maticnal Sales CQperations 8 ownership Filiping 0.0095%
c/o Km. 29 Nartianal Read, Barangay Tunasan, Muntinfupa City
Akash Shah j
Commen | Senior Vice-President and Ghief Einancial Officer
Shares c/o K, 29 National Road, Barangay Tunasan, G- Canadian 0%
Muntinlupa City
Gommon Raberic H Gme: . o
shares Sanior Vice-Fresident, Corporate Services Group 0 Filipino 0%
<o Km. 29 National Road, Barangay Tunasan, Muntinlupa City
Daniei D. Gragorio, Jr. : .
C;;'; :;g” Senior Vice-President for Manufacturing and Logistice TO&?&%;S?{E& Filipino 0.0019%
c/o K. 28 National Road, Barangay Tunasan, Muntinlupa City P :
Ma. Rosario C, Z. Nava
Common | Corporate Sacrata 10,000 — diract G
shares c/o 7" floar The Pergrlbank Centre, 146 Valero Street, Salcedo ownership Filipina 0.0003%
Village, Makati City



The aggregate shareholdings of diréctcrs and key officers as of June 30, 2010 are 20,430,008 shares
which is approximately 0.55319% of outstanding capital stock. '

Changes in Control : '
The Company is not aware of any voting trust agreement or any other similar agreement which may resuyit
in @ change in control. No change in control has occurred since the beginning of its fast fiscal year,

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Refer to Note 14 to the 2010 Audited Financial Statements far details on related party transactions.

PART Iv -~ CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Manual on Corporate Gavernance, which was adopted on June 21, 2007, and revised on
April 14, 2010, details the standards by which it conducts sound corporate governance that is coherent
and consistent with relevant laws ang regulatory rules, and constantly strives to create value for its
stockholders. - : ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ '

. Executive Committee

The Executive Committee of the Board
management policies.  This Committee, which meets regularly, reviews the detailed financial and
operating performance of the company every manth and reviews progress against the relevant Annual
Operating Plan ang Operating Targets, monitor the Company's progress against key initiatives, pricing
strategies and plans, sales and marketing plans, capital expenditure planning and key decisions on
Crganization structure and peopie. :

Based on the Manual, the Executive Comrnittee shall be cormposed of at least five members, namely, the
President-Chief Executive Officer, the Chicf Operating Officer/s, the Chief Financial Officer, and such
other directors.

The incumbent Chairman and members of the Executive Comrmittee are as follows: Messrs. Micky Yong
(Ghairman), Partha Chakrabarti (Chief Operating Officer for Finance, Treasury, Human Resources, Legal,
Manufacturing and Logistics), Felix 8. Yu (Chief Operating Officer for Sales), Akash Shah {CFO), Sunil
D'Souza, James Eng Jr., Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang) and Qasirm Khar, o

Audit Committee

Based on the Manual, the Audit Committee must be comprised of at least threa directors, preferably with
accounting and financial background. Two of the members must be independent directors, including the
Chairman of the committee. The Audit Committee reports to the Board and is required to meet at least
once every three months. ‘

The incumbent Chairman ang members of the Audit Committee are as foilows: Messrs. Oscar 5. Reyes,
{Chairman), John L., Sigalos, Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang), and Rafael M. Ajunan iil.
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Compensation and Remuneration Committea

The Compensation and Rernuneration Committee, based on objective and impartial studies, utilizes a
formal and transparent framework in determining the remuneration of the members of the Board and the
Company’s key executives. Thig committee’s decisions on compensation issues are consistent with the
requirerments of obfectivity, fairness and relevance. This committee meets at least once a year.

Based on the Manual, the Compensation and Remuneration Committee must be comprised of at least
three members, including one independent director. Tha Compensation and Remuneration Commities
reports to the Board and is required to meet at least once each year, ‘

The incumbent Chaitman and members of the Compensation and Rernuneration Committee are as
follows: Messrs. James Eng Jdr. (Chairman), Micky Yong, John L. Sigalos and Rafael M. Alunan Il

Nomination Committee ‘

"he Nornination Committee ensures that the PCPPI Board of Directors is made up of visionary, ethical
and competent business leaders who cap contribute to the vast range of ideas and reach decisions that
will protect and grow the business. This committee also makes s(re that the designated Board mermbers
address the higher purposes of the company as a responsible enterprise which has a positive value on
the communities where it operates. The Committee meets at least once = year.

Based on the Manual, the Nomination Committee must be comprised at least three members, including
one independent director. The Nornination Committee reports fo the Board and js required to meet at
least once each year.

The incumbent Chairman and members of the Nomination Committee are as follows: Messrs, Micky
Yong (Chairmany), Jares Eng Jr., John L. Sigalos and Rafagl M. Alunan 1. :

For purposes of evaluating compliance with the Manual, the Corporation has adopted the self-rating form
prescribed by the Securities ard Exchange Commission ("SEC"). The Corporation has complied with its
Manual through the election of two (2) independent directors to the Corporation’s Board: the consiitution
of the Audit, Compensation and Remuneration, and Nomination Committees pursuant to its By-laws and
the elaction of the Chairman and members of such committees, which inciude the indspendent directors;

The Corporation adheres to a husiness plan, budget and marketing plan. Management prepares andg
Submits to the Executive Committee of the Board and to the Board. on a reqular basis. financial and
operational reports which enable the Board and Management to assess the effectiveness and efficiency
of the Corporation. ‘

While the Corporation has fulfilled its corporate governance obligations and there has been no deviation

from the Manual as of date, it continues to evaluate and review its Manuai to ensure that best practices
On corporate governance are being adopted.
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PART V - SIGNATORIES

The following are the authorized signatories of the Company:

1.

Micky Yong in his capacity as the Chairman of the Board, as well as President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Said positions are the Company’s equivalent positions for principal
executive officer. .

Partha Chakrabarti in his capacity as the Executive Vice-President and Chief Operating Officer. Said
position is the Company’s equivalent position for principal operating officer.

Akash Shah in his capacity as the Chief Financial Officer. Said position is the Company's equivalent
position for principal financial officer. .

Honeylin C, Castolo in her capacity ‘as AVP for Planning and Reporting of the Company. Said
position is the Company’s equivalent position for comptrolier and principal accounting officer.

Ma. Rosario C. Z. Nava in her capacity as the Corporate Secretary of the Company.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation Code. this

By:

report is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
an i ' .

/LWF | /4@_9/2\& bo s

/nﬁcxv YO 'PARTHA CHAKRABART]
Chairman, President and Executive Vice Presidsnt and
Chief Executive Officer : -Chief Operating Officar
ﬁ,_.,r\_ﬁ-
AKASH SHAH HONEYLIN C. CASTOLO

SVP and Chief Financial Officer o AVP-Flanning and Reporfing

My frco Lt

MA. ROSARIO C.Z. NAVA
Corporate Secretary



REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
UNTIN_UPA CTTY ) 8.5.

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me in the City of __TUNTINLUPA CITY ,, ..

__thdayof _ SEP G 92010 by:

. Competent
Name 'Evidence of Identity -
Micky Yong ‘ .Passpd.rt No.E1376652C
Partha Chakrabarti Passport No, ZT?S'WSO
Akash Shah ~ Passport No. BAG47570
Honeylin C. Castolo Passport No. 135089505
Ma. Rosario C. Z. Nava Passport No. XX1856523

Date/Place lasued

Sept. 1, 2009/ Singapore

Feb. 26, 2008 / Manila

Oct. 22, 2008 / Bangkok
Oct. 21, 2005/ Manila

Aug. 23, 2008 / Manila

who have satisfactorily proven their identity to me through the above identification, that they are
the same person who personally signed the foregoing instrument before me and acknowledged

that they executed the same.

ATTY. CELERINO T. SRECIAIH
' : Notary Pubhc
Doc. No. _zalatf | |  Until December 31, 2071, NC 10:030
hoge No- :ﬁ : Attorrey's Roli No 315G
Sl | " IBP LRN. 04683 05-12-2003, liotlo

- Serfes of 2010.

PTR No 0532246 01-25-2010; Muntiniupa City



